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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW 
 
Dear Shareholder, 
 
The past year has seen Oilex embark on an ambitious strategy that depended for its success upon:  
 

• Acquiring a group of exploration and potential production assets that would provide the 
opportunity for rapid, sustained growth with a reasonable balance of risk and reward;  

 

• Attracting an experienced, productive and enthusiastic group of people to form the team that will 
generate the maximum return on investment from those assets; and 

 

• Creating strong working relationships through alliances with Indian companies to join Oilex in its 
joint ventures.   

  
From a team of two permanent employees at the end of the 2005 financial year, Oilex is now a company with 
more than 25 permanent employees and growing. Under the stewardship of Bruce McCarthy (Managing 
Director) the company has built an exceptionally talented technical and executive team with a significant 
depth of experience unparalleled for a company of our size. The team is based out of three main offices - 
two in India focussed on operations and government relations and our Perth head office, where geotechnical 
work and financial management and control is located. 
  
Oilex can now be truly described as an international oil and gas company. It is listed on the Australian Stock 
Exchange and the AIM Market of the London Stock Exchange, with an established and diversified 
international portfolio of exploration and/or production interests in India, offshore Australia, Timor-Leste and 
Oman. Oilex’s activities are primarily focussed on India and Australia and other countries located around the 
rim of the Indian Ocean. 
  
We reported last year that the Company was reviewing its existing Australian permit interests, including the 
drilling program planned for EPP 27 in the Otway Basin, and that it was assessing opportunities to acquire 
early production assets to expand the Company’s exploration interests. We are pleased to report that these 
objectives have, to a large part, been achieved and we are now concentrating on developing these assets 
and building up a sustainable income stream. In addition we continue to seek out new exploration and 
production interests in the countries located around the Indian Ocean rim.  
 
The Australian permit interests held by Oilex have been rationalised to the extent that the Company has 
introduced two Indian participants into the EPP 27 joint venture in the offshore Otway Basin, and the onshore 
Queensland interests have recently been sold to Bow Energy Limited (“Bow”) for 15 million Bow shares and 
options, subject to obtaining Bow shareholder approval. Bow has extensive experience in the Bowen-Surat 
and Cooper-Eromanga basins and is well-placed to derive maximum value from the permits for the benefit of 
its shareholders, the largest of which will be Oilex.  
  
At 30 June 2006, Oilex held interests in five permits, excluding onshore Queensland and recently Oilex and 
its consortium partners were awarded two additional permits – one offshore Western Australia in the outer 
Carnarvon Basin WA-388-P and the other in the Joint Petroleum Development Area (“JPDA”) between 
Timor-Leste (formerly East Timor) and Australia. With seven permits in prospective basins, Oilex has rapidly 
compiled a significant portfolio of oil and gas acreage that has a well-balanced mix of risk and reward. 
 
In the past 12 months Oilex’s share price has grown by 345% and as at the date of this report our market 
capitalization has increased by 600% from $12 million to $84 million (undiluted). The Company retains cash 
resources of approximately $20 million following a recent placement of 23.6 million shares, leaving Oilex well 
placed to fund its work programmes. In that regard, I wish to record the appreciation of the Company and the 
Board for the support given to Oilex by its stock brokers, Hartley’s Limited and its other financiers RFC 
Corporate Finance Limited, which is our nominated advisor on AIM, and LinQ Capital Limited, who have all 
been  instrumental in securing the future of your Company over the past 12 months.  
 
On behalf of the Board, I also wish to record the Company’s appreciation of the extraordinary efforts of Bruce 
McCarthy, India Hydrocarbons Limited (our associates based in India) and the world class team that Bruce 
and Ray Barnes (Technical Director) have attracted to assist Oilex in expanding and developing our 
business base in various parts of the world. To our partners in these ventures, we greatly appreciate your 
constructive input and support and to our contractors and suppliers, we look forward to a long and productive 
working relationship.   
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We anticipate an exciting future for the Company in the international oil and gas arena and we look forward 
to building a sustainable increase in value for the benefit of all shareholders, employees, consultants and 
contractors, joint venture partners and the communities within which we work.  

 
Max Cozijn 
Chairman 
19 September 2006 
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OPERATIONS REVIEW 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Oilex has diligently pursued its goal of growing its 
pool of technical and management skills 
concurrently with the growth in its asset base over 
the past 12 months.  
 
The Company has established a diversified 
international portfolio of exploration and 
production interests in India, offshore Australia, 
Timor-Leste and Oman. Its activities are focussed 
on India and Australia and other countries around 
the rim of the Indian Ocean. “Carpe diem” has 
been our guiding principle.  
 
In new ventures, Oilex has participated in open 
bidding rounds in Australia (October 2005 and 
April 2006), Oman (January 2006), Egypt (July 
2006) and the Joint Petroleum Development Area 
(“JPDA”) offshore Timor-Leste (May 2006) within 
the past 12 months.  In all of these ventures, Oilex 
was the designated Operator for the various 
bidding groups with Indian joint venture parties. 
We were successful in Oman, Australia (April 
2006) and JPDA, acquiring our first choice block 
in each of these rounds. 
 
The Company is directing its efforts towards 
opportunities that have the potential to provide an 
exceptional return on investment. Our focus 
remains on searching for material exploration and 
production assets in Australia, particularly in the 
Northwest Shelf and in the Timor Sea, in the 
prospective hydrocarbon basins of India that have 
been partly explored and developed and which 
have attractive remaining potential and in the 
countries around the Indian Ocean rim.   
 
We have a technical knowledge and skill base 
that gives Oilex and its associates an advantage 
that can be maximised with the assistance of the 
Indian companies with which we have formed 
alliances.  
 
Infield appraisal and exploration activities started 
in India in early September 2006 with drilling on 
the Cambay Field and acquisition of 3D seismic 
planned in October - December 2006.  
 
In Oman, reprocessing of the existing vintage 
seismic data is under way and acquisition of new 
2D and 3D data will start late 2006 or early 2007 
with drilling expected to commence in the second 
half of 2007. In the JPDA between Timor-Leste 
and Australia, work is likely to start on seismic 
reprocessing and acquisition late in 2006. The 
Christine 2D seismic survey in the Otway Basin 
permit EPP 27, offshore South Australia was 

acquired and is being processed in Perth. Drilling 
locations are expected to be decided in 4th quarter 
2006.  
 
 
INDIA  
 
OBJECTIVES 
• Develop a production base in India by March 

2007; 
• Establish the company as an Operator in 

exploration and production in India; and 
• Acquire permit interests in high quality 

exploration and production assets.  
 
The most significant component of the Company’s 
portfolio with the chance of generating significant 
revenue in the near term is in the Cambay Basin, 
Gujarat, India where Oilex has material interests 
of 40%-45%, subject to various approvals from 
the government, in    three “brownfield”           re-
development projects (Cambay, Bhandut and 
Sabarmati fields) in India that are currently 
producing small volumes of oil intermittently. The 
analyses that we have undertaken to assess the 
potential for improving the production rate from 
the existing wells and the scope for full scale 
redevelopment of the fields are encouraging given 
that the reservoir distribution is poorly understood 
and analogies nearby in the Cambay Basin are a 
fair basis for optimism. Step-out exploration 
potential particularly in the Cambay contract area 
is low risk and high reward with the demand for 
gas and oil in the main heavy industrial corridor of 
India remaining substantially in excess of 
domestic supply. 
 
 
ACQUISITION OF INTERESTS IN CAMBAY 
FIELD, GUJARAT, INDIA 
 
In July 2005, Oilex entered into an agreement with 
the Cambay Field Joint Venture, comprising 
Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Ltd 
(“GSPC”) and Niko Resources Ltd (“Niko”) to 
acquire a 30% participating interest in the 
Production Sharing Contract (“PSC”) covering the 
Cambay Field located onshore Gujarat, India  
 
[refer map above]. Earlier this year, Oilex acquired 
an additional 15% equity interest from Niko and 
now holds a 45% participating interest in the 
Cambay PSC, 20% of which is being earned by 
farmin and 25% by purchase from Niko. The 
Government of India approved the 30% farmin 
equity agreement in March 2006 and the approval 
for the balance of the equity in the PSC is 
pending.  
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The Cambay field is located in one of the most 
prolific petroleum provinces onshore India close to 
existing pipeline and industrial infrastructure. It 
was discovered and developed initially by Oil & 
Natural Gas Corporation (“ONGC”) of India and 
was taken over by the Joint Venture comprising 
GSPC and Niko in 1995. Most of the wells have 
suffered well bore damage and have production 
problems related to sand and water ingress. 
There are intervals where oil and gas have been 
reliably identified from log and test (in some 
cases) data that have not been brought into 
production. 
 
Independent consultants working on behalf of 
Oilex have completed an evaluation of all 
available data over the Cambay field to give a 
more reliable estimate of the potential oil and gas 
resource in Cambay field. All of the old data were 
digitised, checked and integrated into a 
comprehensive digital data base that permitted 
their use with modern analytical software.  
 
 
OILEX ASSUMES ROLE OF OPERATOR 
CAMBAY FIELD  
 
Oilex formally became the operator under the 
existing PSC and Joint Operating Agreement 
effective from June 2006 and is responsible for all 
operations, including production, in the Cambay 
field. It has been planning the exploration and 
development work programme that is centred on 
drilling of 2-3 wells and acquisition of a 3D seismic 
programme over the entire contract area of 160 
km2. Drilling pads designed to enable drilling 
through the monsoon season were constructed in 
April – June 2006 prior to the onset of the 
monsoon about mid June.   
 

Operations personnel are based out of new 
offices in Vadodara (Baroda) which is near to the 
Cambay field.  
 

As a consequence of the transfer of operatorship 
for Cambay Field and the pending transfer of 
operatorship for Bhandut and Sabarmati Fields, 
six former employees of Niko and the contract 
field maintenance and security staff have joined 
Oilex. The total complement of employees of the 
company in India is now 12, led by Rich Paces, 
Country Manager and Chief Operating Officer 
based in New Delhi and Tony Beckett, General 
Manager – Operations based in Vadodara.   
 
 

BHANDUT AND SABARMATI FIELDS: 
GUJARAT 
 
Oilex acquired 40% in each of Bhandut and 
Sabarmati Fields onshore Gujarat from Niko early 
in 2006, subject to the approval of the 
Government of India. Each of these fields is 
producing oil at low rates on an intermittent basis 
and they are anticipated to be good candidates for 
re-development. Oilex is acting as Operator of the 
Sabarmati and Bhandut Fields under an 
agreement with Niko and the formal transfer will 
take place when the approval of the Government 
is received for the purchase of the Niko interests.  
 
The fields were discovered and developed initially 
by ONGC of India. Hydrocarbons were found in 
Oligocene and Eocene sandstones and continued 
to be produced on an intermittent basis after the 
fields were acquired by the GSPC and Niko Joint 
Venture in 1995. Production from the fields has 
suffered because of sand and water influx and 
decline in reservoir pressure most likely due to 
formation damage. 
 
 
RESOURCE ASSESSMENT – CAMBAY OS II 
AND EP IV HORIZONS 
 
A comprehensive evaluation of all of the available 
data has been completed to define with a higher 
level of confidence the characteristics of the 
reservoir and the fluid composition in potential 
reservoir units of the Cambay Field. This work has 
resulted in volumetric estimates for the oil and gas 
resource that may be contained in the Oligocene 
OS II sandstone and the Eocene EP IV 
sandstones on both the Western High Trend and 
the Eastern Flank.   
 
These units are two of the main objective horizons 
to be tested in the Phase-I drilling programme. No 
estimates for other potential reservoir units in the 
Miocene and Oligocene have been completed at 
this point.  
 

Gross Volume-in-Place 
Resource Low 

Estimate 
Best 

Estimate 
High 

Estimate 
OIL 

Million Stock Tank Barrels 16 43 108 

GAS 
Billion Cubic Feet 77 173 432 

CONDENSATE 
Million Stock Tank Barrels 1.6 3.7 9.8 

Table1: Estimates of the potential hydrocarbons 
originally in place (100% basis) calculated for 
the Western High Trend and Eastern Flank at 
the stratigraphic level OS II and EP IV 
sandstones. 
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Accounting for the possible presence of oil and /or 
gas on the Eastern Flank and the Western High 
Trend, the best estimate of potential resource 
original volume in place is 43 million barrels of oil 
initially in place (“mmstboiip”) and 173 billion cubic 
feet of gas initially in place (“bcfgiip”). The range 
of volumes for the potential oil resource is now 16 
to 108 mmstboiip and the range of volumes for the 
potential gas resource is now 77 to 432 bcfgiip. 
Approximately 6,000 barrels of oil and 52 billion 
cubic feet of gas have been produced from the 
Cambay Field since inception.   
 
 
PHASE 1 DRILLING PROGRAMME: CAMBAY 
FIELD 

 
On the basis of data analysed from existing wells, 
two wells have been optimally located to acquire 
modern wireline and formation fluid and pressure 
information to aid in normalising the existing data 
base and to intersect the possible oil leg on the 
Western High Trend. The data acquired from this 
programme will be used to calibrate the 3D 
seismic survey that will be acquired following the 
monsoon season and to plan the second phase of 
drilling which could begin as early as December. 
 
The wells are expected to take 14 to 21 days to 
drill to total depth of about 1900 metres. On 
reaching total depth, the wells will be logged and 
the rig released to the next well. Testing will be 
carried out subsequently using a smaller workover 
rig in an effort to minimise cost and rig time with 
the larger capacity rig.  
 
The Cambay drilling programme was delayed until 
early September 2006 while the rig completed a 
prior commitment for GSPC in a nearby contract 
area. In the meantime, the abnormally high 
intensity of the 2006 monsoon in Gujarat caused 
widespread flooding in the region. The rig 
mobilised for the first of 2-3 wells on 3 September 
2006.  
 
 
OMAN 
 
Block 56: Onshore Southern Oman  
The Government of the Sultanate of Oman 
awarded Block 56 to a consortium led by Oilex 
(25%, operator), and includes GAIL India Ltd 
(“GAIL”, 25%), Videocon Industries Ltd (“VIL”, 
25%), Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd 
(“HPCL”, 12.5%) and Bharat Petroleum 
Corporation Ltd (“BPCL”, 12.5%). The Exploration 
and Production Sharing Agreement (“EPSA”) was 
signed on 28 June in Muscat in the presence of 
His Excellency Dr. Mohammed bin Hamed Al-
Rumhy, Minister of Oil & Gas, Sultanate of Oman 

and other Government dignitaries and senior 
officials of the Ministry of Oil & Gas.  

 
Block 56 was Oilex’s first choice block and the 
highest rated of the blocks on offer in the bid 
round that closed on 1 January 2006. The block is 
located onshore, adjacent to producing fields 
operated by PDO, the Oman national oil 
company, in the South Oman Salt Basin, which is 
one of the main producing basins in Oman.  
 
The recognition of 20 structural leads and the 
possibility of an extension of the proven Ara salt 
play across Block 56 justified a comprehensive 
work programme which is estimated to cost 
US$7.5 million net to Oilex over the initial 3 year 
term. Drilling is expected to start mid 2007. 
Potential has been recognized for targets ranging 
from the Cambrian Buah formation to the 
Cretaceous Wasia group in areas where depth of 
burial is sufficient to mitigate the biodegradation of 
oil at the shallower levels. The possible presence 
of a thicker sedimentary section in the eastern 
area implying a more extensive distribution of the 
Ara Salt unit into Block 56 raises the possibility of 
salt related structures similar to those producing 
to the west in the main salt basin.  
 
The work programme commenced in August 2006 
with the test reprocessing of selected seismic 
lines. Acquisition of 2D and 3D seismic surveys is 
planned to commence in the last quarter of 2006, 
or early 2007 depending on availability of seismic 
contractors.  
 
TIMOR-LESTE  
 
JPDA 06-103:  Flamingo Trough, Joint 
Petroleum Development Area between Timor-
Leste and Australia 
 

In late August, Oilex as operator, was advised by 
the Timor Sea Designated Authority, the 
governing body of the JPDA that the bidding 
group consisting of GSPC (25%), VIL (25%), 
BPCL (25%) and Oilex (25%) were the successful 
bidders for application block JPDA 06-103. It is 
located immediately to the east of the Laminaria, 
Corallina, Kakatua, Kuda Tasi and Elang 
discoveries/oil and gas fields and to the north of 
the Bayu-Undan gas condensate field. After 
licensing an extensive multi-client seismic data 
base and conducting an intensive technical 
review, the consortium concluded that this area 
was very prospective with structures analogous to 
the Laminaria field to the west.  
 
Once the block award is finalized, a programme of 
seismic reprocessing and acquisition will be 
initiated at the earliest opportunity, with drilling 
likely to commence later next year.  
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AUSTRALIA 
 
EPP 27: Otway Basin, Offshore South 
Australia 
 

Oilex, VIL and GSPC (together the “Farminees”) 
entered into a farmin agreement with Great 
Artesian Oil & Gas Limited (“GOG”) on 27 
February 2006. Each of the farminees is to pay 
33.3% of the cost of a well and seismic 
programme to earn a 20% working interest in the 
permit.   
 

Woodside acquired a 3D seismic survey 
(Carpenter Survey) in the NW area of the permit 
as part of an earlier farmin agreement. Oilex 
reviewed the work completed by Woodside and 
revised the fault patterns in the 3D area, the 
porosity versus depth relationship and source rock 
maturity interpretations. The structures mapped in 
the 3D seismic area all have significant risk of 
leakage on fault-dependent closure. 
 
The ‘Christine’ 2D seismic survey commenced on 
28 June 2006 and was completed on 20 July 
2006. The survey was conducted by M.V. Pacific 
Titan under management by Santos Ltd as part of 
a group of surveys being conducted in the general 
area.  During the survey, approximately 1300 line 
kilometres of data were acquired, extending an 
existing seismic grid and covering eight leads 
identified in the south-eastern part of the permit. 
 
The survey is the first phase of the work 
programme that Oilex, GSPC and VIL are 
conducting as part of the farmin agreement signed 
with GOG in February. The purpose is to refine 
the maps with the new data, determine the leads 
that may be upgraded to prospects and define 
optimal drilling locations on those prospects.  
 
The processing and interpretation of the data is 
planned to be completed by October 2006, with 
the aim of drilling a well at the earliest opportunity 
thereafter, depending on the availability of a 
suitable drilling rig. 
 
GOG announced on 28 December 2005, that due 
to the lack of availability of a rig to undertake the 
drilling, it had been necessary to seek a 
suspension of the permit for up to 12 months, until 
21 December 2006. The term of permit year 6 
now ends on 24 February 2007.  
 
 

WA-388-P: Carnarvon Basin Offshore Western 
Australia 
 
As part of a developing gas strategy with our 
Indian partners, Oilex, as Operator on behalf of a 
bidding group including VIL (25%), GSPC (25%), 
BPCL (12.5%), HPCL (12.5%) and Oilex (25%) 
successfully bid for Application Area W05-11 in 
April 2006. Oilex has been advised that this area 
will be designated exploration permit WA-388-P. 
The block lies to the west of the North Rankin, 
Goodwin and Perseus gas and condensate fields 
currently being produced for the domestic and 
LNG gas markets by Northwest Shelf Ventures 
and to the north of the large gas resources 
discovered in the Janz/lo area.  
 
Further technical studies and seismic 
reprocessing will be conducted before 3D seismic 
is acquired in the permit early next year.  
 
 
Onshore Australia: Cooper-Eromanga & Surat-
Bowen Basins, Queensland 
 

In August 2006, Oilex entered into an agreement 
with Bow Energy Limited (“Bow”) to sell its permit 
interests in the Surat-Bowen and Cooper-
Eromanga basins. As consideration for the sale of 
the assets, Oilex will be issued with 15 million fully 
paid ordinary Bow shares and 15 million options 
to purchase Bow shares at 50 cents per share on 
or before 5 years from the issue date. When the 
transaction is completed, Oilex will be the largest 
shareholder in Bow. The sale is subject to Bow 
shareholder approval and completion of the due 
diligence process. The effective date of sale is 24 
August 2006 with settlement to be effected by 31 
October 2006. The shares will be subject to 
voluntary escrow for a period of 2 years from the 
date of issue. 
 
Bow has a longstanding record of oil and gas 
exploration operations in Queensland and has a 
comprehensive geological and geophysical 
database. By concluding this agreement with 
Bow, Oilex shareholders will benefit from Bow’s 
expertise and share in any price appreciation of 
Bow’s shares in the event of successful drilling by 
Bow on the permit areas that are being sold by 
Oilex and on Bow’s existing exploration permits. 
Bow has advised that it plans to participate in at 
least 7 exploration wells on their permits, some of 
which they have farmed out and have a carried 
interest, during the next 12 months. 
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CORPORATE REVIEW  
 
Alliance Agreements 
Oilex signed Alliance Agreements with three of 
India’s large public sector companies (or their 
subsidiaries) to participate jointly in oil and gas 
exploration and production projects primarily in 
Australia and India and in the broader area of the 
Indian Ocean rim. The companies are GSPC, 
GAIL, HPCL and its affiliate Prize Petroleum 
Company Ltd. These companies have very strong 
balance sheets and complementary skills and 
expertise in the full range of downstream 
petroleum activities from refining to gas 
distribution and marketing and have, in recent 
years, taken direct equity in exploration permits in 
India and overseas.   
  
GSPC is the company owned by the State 
Government of Gujarat and was formed to 
participate directly in oil and gas exploration and 
production activities. GSPC began its involvement 
in the upstream sector in the early 1990’s with the 
award of small oil and gas fields onshore Gujarat, 
one of which, Cambay Field, it has farmed out 
part of its interest to Oilex which will become 
Operator of that field. GSPC has been active in all 
of the exploration licensing rounds in India and is 
the major Joint Venture party in the Hazira Gas 
Field. GSPC is also heavily involved in the power 
and pipeline sectors through its subsidiary 
companies. It concluded its first four international 
ventures all with Oilex.  
 
HPCL is one of India’s largest refiners of 
petroleum, operating two refineries with total 
throughput in 2004-2005 of 13.94 million tonnes. 
The company is a large marketer of petroleum 
products in India and in 2004-2005 achieved its 
highest ever volume of 20.09 million tonnes. As 
part of its growth strategy, HPCL has sought to 
diversify its activities and is involved in a variety of 
exploration activities in India and, in its first two 
international ventures, with Oilex.  
 
GAIL is India’s largest gas distribution and 
marketing company with about 74% market share 
and over 5,300 km of pipeline in India. GAIL has 
developed a strategy to integrate across the gas 
value chain and has taken up exploration interests 
in India and overseas. GAIL has been active in 
recent exploration licencing rounds in India. GAIL 
“…plans to globalize its exploration and 
production ventures by participating in 
opportunities in foreign countries …”.  
 
Oilex is contributing its exploration and production 
expertise and has excellent technical support from 
key Australian consulting groups that are familiar 
with Indian joint venture operations and petroleum 

basins. GSPC, GAIL and HPCL are all involved in 
the marketing of hydrocarbons in India and there 
is a strong attraction to having companies with 
direct access to gas markets in one of the largest 
and fastest growing economies in the world 
working with Oilex.  
 
Earlier last year Oilex signed a similar agreement 
with Videocon International Ltd, a large Indian 
public listed company and has renewed that 
agreement this year.    
 
 
Agreement with India Hydrocarbons Limited 
In April 2005, Oilex signed a services agreement 
with India Hydrocarbons Ltd (“IHL”) under which it 
was agreed that IHL would be a 10% shareholder 
in a special purpose Indian subsidiary of Oilex and 
that the special purpose Indian subsidiary of Oilex 
would hold all of Oilex’s India related investments. 
As a result of Oilex restructuring its business, its 
Indian investments will be largely held directly by 
Oilex or one of its other wholly owned 
subsidiaries. Consequently, IHL lost the 
opportunity to participate, as previously agreed, 
directly in Oilex’s Indian investments. 

 
To redress this situation, Oilex agreed with IHL, 
pursuant to an agreement dated 31 March 2006, 
to issue IHL or its nominee 5 million shares in two 
tranches each of 2.5 million shares at an issue 
price of A$0.20 per Share. Shareholders 
approved the issue of the shares to IHL at the 
extraordinary general meeting of shareholders 
held on 28 July 2006.  
 
IHL is headed by Mr L. L. Bhandari, who has held 
key positions in large Indian public and private 
sector companies as Chairman of ONGC, 
Chairman, Managing Director of ONGC Videsh 
and President of Tata Petrodyne Limited. Mr 
Bhandari’s experience and knowledge of the 
Indian hydrocarbon sector are of immense value 
to Oilex in pursuing opportunities in India. 
 
 
Acquisition of Independence Oil & Gas Limited  
Oilex acquired 98.04% of the issued capital of the 
unlisted company Independence Oil & Gas 
Limited (“IOGL”) in December 2005. The 
consideration for the acquisition was 980,534 
Oilex shares plus one free Oilex option 
exercisable at $0.50 per share and expiring 
7 December 2008. The exercise of the options is 
conditional upon the acquisition by IOGL of an 
onshore petroleum permit in Timor-Leste (formerly 
East Timor) within the option period.  All of these 
securities are subject to a 12 month voluntary 
escrow. 
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Part of Oilex’s strategy is to acquire exploration 
assets in the prospective areas of the Northwest 
Shelf and Timor Sea. IOGL has spent the past 
three years developing a detailed database and 
contacts in East Timor and offers an efficient entry 
for Oilex to expand its interests in that region. 
Oilex has retained the services of experienced 
personnel who have been involved in IOGL since 
it was established as a special purpose company 
for oil exploration, onshore Timor-Leste. 
 
 
Independence Oil & Gas Scholarship 
Oilex has committed to continue a community 
support programme started by IOGL in Timor-
Leste aimed at providing fundamental assistance 
in educating young people. The “Independence 
Oil and Gas Scholarship Fund” was established 
by Oilex this year and the first student to benefit 
from the programme is Delio Teixeira.  
 
Delio is a student at Murdoch University, in his 
second year of a Bachelor of Arts degree. The 
purpose of the scholarship is to provide young 
men and women of Timor-Leste with the 
opportunity of an education that will be the basis 
of a fundamental contribution to the development 
of the country.     
 
 
AIM Listing- United Kingdom  
Oilex listed on the AIM Market of the London 
Stock Exchange (“AIM”), by way of a compliance 
listing on 16 February 2006. The AIM listing has 
broadened Oilex’s shareholder base and provided 
easier access for investors in the UK and 
European markets to the Company’s securities. 
The dual listing was expected to improve the 
Company’s flexibility and access to the UK Capital 
Markets and this proved to be the case in the 
capital raising that was undertaken successfully in 
June and July when UK institutions contributed a 
substantial part of the total raising. This augurs 
well for any future capital raising that may be 
required to fund the company’s oil and gas 
exploration and production activities. 
 
RFC Corporate Finance Ltd is Oilex’s Nominated 
Adviser and London broker KBC Peel Hunt Ltd is 
the Company’s AIM broker in the UK. 
 
 

The information in this report has been compiled by the 
Managing Director of Oilex Ltd, Dr Bruce McCarthy BSc 
(Hons) PhD (Geology) who has over 26 years 
experience in the oil and gas exploration and production 
industry. The estimates of hydrocarbons in place were 
prepared by Dr Paul Robinson BSc (Hons) PhD 
(Geology), an independent consultant to Oilex Ltd who 
has over 25 years experience in petroleum geology and 
resources estimation and is a member of the AAPG. 
The estimates were reviewed by Ray Barnes, the 
Technical Director of Oilex Ltd who has over 35 years 
experience in oil and gas exploration and production 
industry and is a member of the AAPG. Dr Robinson 
and Mr Barnes both reviewed this report and consent to 
the inclusion of the estimated hydrocarbons in place in 
the form and context in which they appear. 



OILEX LTD 
ABN 50 078 652 632 

 

 

 9

PERMIT SCHEDULE  
PERMIT SCHEDULE   
OFFSHORE PERMITS  

PERMIT BASIN / STATE/ 
COUNTRY   PARTIES % 

HELD OPERATOR 

Oilex Ltd  (Note 1) 20.00 
Videocon Industries Ltd  20.00 
Gujarat State Petroleum Corp. Ltd  20.00 

EPP 27 Otway / SA / Australia 

Great Artesian Oil & Gas Ltd 40.00 

Oilex Ltd 

Oilex Ltd 25.00 
Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Ltd 25.00 
Videocon Industries Ltd 25.00 

06-103 
(awarded 

August 2006) 

Flamingo / Joint Petroleum  
Development Area/ 

Timor-Leste & Australia 
Bharat Petroleum Corporation Ltd  25.00 

Oilex Ltd  

Oilex Ltd 25.00 
Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Ltd 25.00 
Videocon Industries Ltd  25.00 
Bharat Petroleum Corporation Ltd  12.50 

WA-388-P 
(awarded July 2006) Carnarvon / WA / Australia  

Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd  12.50 

Oilex Ltd  

 

 
 
ONSHORE PERMITS  

PERMIT BASIN / STATE/ 
COUNTRY PARTIES % 

HELD OPERATOR 

Oilex NL Holdings (India) Ltd (Note 2) *15.00 
Oilex Ltd 30.00 Cambay Field* Cambay / Gujarat / India  
Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Ltd 55.00 

Oilex Ltd          

Oilex NL Holdings (India) Ltd  *40.00 Bhandut Field*  Cambay / Gujarat / India Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Ltd 60.00 Oilex Ltd  
Oilex NL Holdings (India) Ltd  *40.00 Sabarmati Field*  Cambay / Gujarat / India Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Ltd 60.00 Oilex Ltd  

Oilex Ltd 25.00 
GAIL (India) Ltd  25.00 
Videocon Industries Ltd  25.00 
Bharat Petroleum Corporation Ltd  12.50 

Block 56  
 Oman  

Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd  12.50 

Oilex Ltd  

* Pending approval of the Government of India  
 

 
 
ONSHORE AUSTRALIAN PERMITS SOLD SUBSEQUENT TO 30 JUNE 2006 

PERMIT BASIN/STATE BLOCK 
NAME PARTIES % 

HELD OPERATOR 

ATP574P  Surat, QLD  Seqoil Pty Ltd (Note 3) 57.50 Victoria Petroleum NL 
ATP593P  Surat, QLD   Seqoil Pty Ltd  76.00 Seqoil Pty Ltd 

Barcoo  Seqoil Pty Ltd  40.00 Victoria Petroleum NL
Regleigh  Seqoil Pty Ltd  16.00 Icon Oil NL  

Springfield Seqoil Pty Ltd 16.00 Icon Oil NL  
Barcoo Jct. Seqoil Pty Ltd & Oilex Ltd 88.00 Oilex Ltd 
Brightspot Seqoil Pty Ltd  10.00 Icon Oil NL  

ATP794P  
(Note 4) 

Eromanga, 
QLD  

Part 2  Seqoil Pty Ltd  40.00 Victoria Petroleum NL 
Rookwood Seqoil Pty Ltd  60.435 Seqoil Pty Ltd ATP608P Surat, QLD  Remainder Seqoil Pty Ltd  48.125 Seqoil Pty Ltd  

ATP805P  Surat, QLD   Seqoil Pty Ltd  42.50 Seqoil Pty Ltd  
ATP548P Eromanga, QLD  Oilex Ltd 11.35 IOR Exploration PL 
ATP545P  Eromanga, QLD  Oilex Ltd 45.50 Roma Petroleum NL 
ATP677P  Eromanga, QLD  Seqoil Pty Ltd 50.00 Seqoil Pty Ltd  

 
NOTE 1:  Oilex, Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Ltd and Videocon Industries Ltd are each earning 20% interest in return for 

funding 33.33% each of an agreed work program.  
NOTE 2:  Oilex NL Holdings (India) Ltd is a wholly owned subsidiary of Oilex Ltd.  
NOTE 3:  Seqoil Pty Ltd is a wholly owned subsidiary of Oilex Ltd. 
NOTE 4:  ATP794P was previously ATP589P.  
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. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 

Since the introduction of the ASX Corporate Governance Council's Principles of Good Corporate 
Governance and Best Practice Recommendations ("ASX Principles and Recommendations"), Oilex Ltd 
("Company") has made it a priority to adopt systems of control and accountability as the basis for the 
administration of corporate governance.  Some of these policies and procedures are summarised in this 
report. Commensurate with the spirit of the ASX Principles and Recommendations, the Company has 
followed each recommendation where the Board has considered the recommendation to be an appropriate 
benchmark for corporate governance practices, taking into account factors such as the size of the Company 
and the Board, resources available and activities of the Company.  Where, after due consideration, the 
Company's corporate governance practices depart from the ASX Principles and Recommendations, the 
Board has offered full disclosure of the nature of, and reason for, the adoption of its own practice. 
 
Further information about the Company's corporate governance practices is set out on the Company's 
website at www.oilex.com.au.  In accordance with the ASX Principles and Recommendations, information 
published on the Company's website includes charters (for the Board and its sub-committees), the 
Company's code of conduct and other policies and procedures relating to the Board and its responsibilities. 
 
 
EXPLANATIONS FOR DEPARTURES FROM BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
During the Company's 2005/2006 financial year ("Reporting Period") the Company has complied with each 
of the Ten Essential Corporate Governance Principles and the corresponding Best Practice 
Recommendations as published by the ASX Corporate Governance Council ("ASX Principles and 
Recommendations"), other than in relation to the matters specified below. 
 
Principle 2 Recommendation 2.1 

Notification of Departure:  The Board does not have a majority of independent directors.  Only one 
of the 4 directors is independent. 

 
Explanation for Departure:  The Board considers that the current composition of the Board is 

adequate for the Company's current size and operations, and includes an 
appropriate mix of skills and expertise, relevant to the Company's 
business.   

 
Principle 2 Recommendation 2.2 

Notification of Departure:  The chair does not satisfy the test of independence as set out in Box 2.1 
of the ASX Principles and Recommendations ("Independence Test"). 

 
Explanation for Departure: While the Board recognises the importance of independence in decision 

making, it does not comply with Best Practice Recommendation 2.2 as 
Mr Max Cozijn does not satisfy the Independence Test. The Board 
believes that Mr Cozijn is the most appropriate person for the position as 
chair because of his industry experience. The Board believes it is only Mr 
Cozijn's services as Company Secretary that precludes him from being 
considered independent and that his role as Company Secretary is 
unlikely to cause a conflict of interest or impede Mr Cozijn's ability to 
exercise independent judgement.  In this regard, the Board considers Mr 
Cozijn to be a suitable Chairman. 

 
Principles 2 and 9, Recommendations 2.4 and 9.2 

Notification of Departure:  There is no nomination or remuneration committee.  
 
Explanation for Departure: The full Board considers those matters and issues arising that would 

usually fall to a nomination or remuneration committee.  The Board 
considers that no efficiencies or other benefits would be gained by 
establishing separate committees.  

 

http://www.oilex.com.au/
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Principle 4 Recommendation 4.2, 4.3 
Notification of Departure:  A separate audit committee has not been formed. 
 
Explanation for Departure:  The role of the audit committee is carried out by the full Board.  The 

Board considers that given its size and composition, no efficiencies or 
other benefits would be gained by establishing a separate audit 
committee. There is provision for the independent director to meet 
separately with the external auditor to discuss any issues arising from the 
auditor’s review of the accounts.  

 
Principle 7 Recommendation 7.1 

Notification of Departure:  The Company has a basic Risk Management Policy but does not have a 
formal framework for enterprise risk management.  

 
Explanation for Departure:  Given the small scale of the Company's initial operations and the fact that 

its risks are known and managed by a small number of individuals, to 
date the Company has not had a formal framework for enterprise risk 
management. The Company has had various measures in place to 
address specific areas of risk, in particular, monitoring its internal controls 
on a regular basis with weekly assessment of cash flow and monthly 
finance reports. However, given the growth and increasing complexity of 
the Company’s operations, the development of a more formal strategy is 
underway and will be implemented by end of the coming financial year. 

 
 
NOMINATION COMMITTEE 
 
The full Board, in its capacity as the Nomination Committee, held one meeting during the Reporting Period.  
All members attended the meeting. 
 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
The full Board, in its capacity as the Audit Committee, held two meetings during the Reporting Period.  All 
members attended the meeting. 
 
Mr Max Cozijn’s qualifications and experience meet the tests of financial literacy, financial expertise and 
industry knowledge. A profile of each director containing their qualifications is set out in the Director’s Report 
section of this Annual Report. 
 
 
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 
Company's Remuneration Policies 
Details of remuneration, including the Company’s policy on remuneration, are contained in the 
“Remuneration Report” which forms part of the Directors’ Report.  
 
Names of Remuneration Committee Members and their attendance at Committee Meetings 
The full Board, in its capacity as the Remuneration Committee, held two meetings during the Reporting 
Period.  All members attended the meeting. 
 
 
OTHER 
 
Skills, Experience, Expertise and Term of Office of Each Director 
A profile of each director containing the skills, experience, expertise and term of office of each director is set 
out in the Directors' Report. 
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Identification of Independent Directors  
In considering independence of directors, the Board refers to Independence Test as recommended by the 
ASX.  To the extent that it is necessary for the Board to consider issues of materiality, the Board refers to the 
thresholds for qualitative and quantitative materiality as adopted by the Board and contained in the Board 
Charter, which is disclosed in full on the Company’s website.  
 
Applying the Independence Test, the Board considers that Dr Geoffrey Johnson is independent.   
 
Statement Concerning Availability of Independent Professional Advice 
If a director considers it necessary to obtain independent professional advice to properly discharge the 
responsibility of his/her office as a director, then, provided the director first obtains approval for incurring 
such expense from the chairperson, the Company will pay the reasonable expenses associated with 
obtaining such advice. 
 
Confirmation Whether Performance Evaluation of the Board and its Members Have Taken Place and 
How Conducted 
 

During the Reporting Period an evaluation of the Board and its members was carried out.  The evaluation 
process comprised an informal discussion between Mr Bruce McCarthy and the Chairman in relation to 
composition of the Board as a whole. Further discussions were subsequently held involving the full Board.  
 
Existence and Terms of any Schemes for Retirement Benefits for Non-Executive Directors 
There are no termination or retirement benefits for non-executive directors. 
 
Financial and Other Inducements and Whistleblowing 
In connection with the Company’s increased international business activity, the Company has amended its 
Code of Conduct to reflect its commitment to combating bribery in compliance with the Criminal Code 
Amendment (Bribery of Foreign Public Officials Act) 1999.  The Company also has in place a Whistleblower 
Policy to encourage staff to reveal to management events of corporate misconduct.   
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The Directors present their report together with the financial report of Oilex Ltd (the “Company”) and its 
controlled entities (“Oilex”) for the year ended 30 June 2006 and the auditors’ report thereon. 
 
 
DIRECTORS 
 
The names and details of Directors of the Company in office during the financial year and until the date of 
this report are as follows. Directors were in office for this entire period unless otherwise stated. 
 
Mr Max Dirk Jan Cozijn 
(Non-Executive Chairman and Company Secretary) 
BComm, ASA MAICD 
Age: 56 
Chairman since the Company listed on the Australian Stock Exchange (“ASX”) in 2003. Mr Cozijn has over 
30 years experience in the administration of listed mining and industrial companies. He is the Finance 
Director and Company Secretary of Metex Resources Ltd, Finance Director and Company Secretary of 
Magma Metals Ltd and Non-Executive Director and Company Secretary of Elkedra Diamonds NL and is a 
Director of various private companies, having also previously been a Non-Executive Director of Kagara Zinc 
Ltd for 20 years. 
 

During the last three years Mr Cozijn has been a Director of the following listed companies: 
• Elkedra Diamonds NL (From April 2000 to current)  
• Magma Metals Ltd (from June 2005 to current) 
• Metex Resources Ltd (from September 1992 to current) 

 
Dr Bruce Henry McCarthy 
(Managing Director)  
BSc (Hons) PhD (Geology) 
Age: 56 
Appointed Managing Director in February 2005. Dr McCarthy has over 26 years experience in the oil and gas 
exploration and production industry in geotechnical and management positions. Further details of Dr 
McCarthy’s qualifications and experience can be found in the Executive Management section of the 
Directors’ Report. 
 

During the last three years Dr McCarthy has not been a Director of any listed companies.  
 
Mr Raymond George Barnes 
(Technical Director) 
BSc (Hons) Geology  
Age: 55 
Appointed as a Director in September 2005. Mr Barnes has over 34 years experience in the oil and gas 
exploration and production industry. Further details of Mr Barnes’ qualifications and experience can be found 
in the Executive Management section of the Directors’ Report. 
 

During the last three years Mr Barnes has been a Director of the following listed company: 
• Voyager Energy Limited (from September 2001 to September 2005)  

 
Dr Geoffrey Ian Johnson 
(Independent Non-Executive Director) 
BSc (Hons) PhD (Geology), Graduate Diploma in Environmental Science  
Age: 47 
Director since the Company listed on the ASX in 2003. Dr Johnson has over 20 years experience in multi-
commodity mineral exploration throughout Australia and Africa. He is currently Exploration Director of 
Zambezi Resources Ltd and a Non-Executive Director of Zambezi Nickel Ltd.  Dr Johnson is a member of 
the Geological Society of Australia, the Australian Institute of Geoscientists, the Society of Geology Applied 
to Mineral Deposits and is a fellow of the Society of Economic Geologists. 
 

During the last three years Dr Johnson has been a Director of the following listed companies: 
• Zambezi Resources Ltd (from April 2004 to current) 
• Zambezi Nickel Ltd (from July 2005 to current)  
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Mr Simon Lee Robertson  
(Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer)  
BBus, CA 
Age: 46 
Appointed as a Director in February 2005 and resigned in September 2005. Mr Robertson has held senior 
finance roles at listed companies involved in contract mining activities in Australia and overseas. 
 

During the last three years Mr Robertson has not been a Director of any listed companies.  
 
 
DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS 
 
All members of the Board are members of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees. The 
number of meetings of Directors (including meetings of committees of Directors) and the number of meetings 
attended by each Director of the Company during the financial year are: 
 

 

Board 
Meetings 

Audit 
Committee 
Meetings 

Remuneration 
Committee 
Meetings 

Nomination 
Committee 
Meetings 

 A B A B A B A B 
Mr M.D.J. Cozijn 20 20 2 2 2 2 1 1 
Dr B.H. McCarthy 20 20 2 2 2 2 1 1 
Mr R.G. Barnes 18 18 1 1 2 2 - - 
Dr G.I. Johnson 20 19 2 2 2 2 1 1 
Mr S.L. Robertson 2 2 1 1 - - 1 1 
 

A - Number of meetings held during the time the Director held office during the year 
B - Number of meetings attended 
 
 
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT 
 
Dr Bruce Henry McCarthy 
(Managing Director) 
BSc (Hons) PhD (Geology) 
Age: 56 
Dr McCarthy has onshore and offshore experience gained in Australia and overseas working for small 
independent and a large multinational Company. Most recently he worked as an independent consultant and 
as President-India for Cairn Energy PLC (UK) leading their highly successful operating subsidiary in India 
until 2002 when he returned to Australia. 
 

From 1996 to 2000, Dr McCarthy was based in India as Executive Director with Command Petroleum India 
Ltd (“Command”) and with Cairn Energy India Pty Ltd (“Cairn”) after Command merged with Cairn in 1997. 
Until 1995, he spent 14 years with Marathon Oil (US) based in the UK working in the North Sea, the North-
West Shelf of Western Australia and the Timor Sea. 
 
Mr Raymond George Barnes 
(Technical Director) 
BSc (Hons) (Geology) 
Age: 55 
Mr Barnes has worked in Europe, North and South America, South East Asia, the Middle East and Australia 
with an outstanding record of finding and developing commercial oil and gas discoveries in Australia and 
internationally. Recent appointments include Technical Director of Voyager Energy Limited from 2001 until 
September 2005 and before that Exploration Manager of Apache Energy based in Perth. 
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Mr Graham John McCauley 
(Chief Financial Officer) 
FCA, ACIS 
Age: 56 
Mr McCauley is a Chartered Accountant and Chartered Secretary with over 30 years managerial, business 
development and financial accounting experience with international geophysical and oil companies. He has 
worked in Australia, Indonesia and the United Kingdom for companies such as Robertson Group, Horizon 
Exploration and Voyager Energy. 
 
Mr Richard Steven Paces 
(Chief Operating Officer and Country Manager - India) 
BSc (Chemical Engineering) 
Age: 49 
Mr Paces has over 25 years of experience in the oil and gas exploration and production industry. His 
background includes broad petroleum and reservoir engineering experience as well as extensive operations 
and management experience. He has worked onshore and offshore with both large and small multinational 
companies and has a variety of international experience. He joined Oilex after leaving Marathon Oil 
Corporation where he was Vice President and Country Manager in Equatorial Guinea, Central Africa where 
two expansion projects in excess of US$1.2 billion were successfully completed and the construction of a 3.4 
million ton/annum LNG export terminal was well under way. 
 

From 1998 to 2002, Mr Paces was based in India with Cairn Energy working with Dr McCarthy starting as 
General Manager – Technical and eventually becoming Cairn’s Country Manager in India when Dr McCarthy 
was transferred to Cairn’s head office in Edinburgh. After leaving Cairn, he spent one year working for 
Reliance Industries in India as Chief Operating Officer of their oil and gas division. 
 
 
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 
 
The principal activities of Oilex during the course of the financial year included: 

• Exploration for oil and gas; 
• Appraisal and development of oil and gas properties; and 
• Production and sale of oil. 

 
There were no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities of Oilex during the year. 
 
Operating Results  
The consolidated loss of Oilex for the year ended 30 June 2006 after income tax amounted to $10,680,105 
(2005: $5,234,864) after expensing share based payments (options) of $2,499,908 which does not affect 
Oilex’s cash flow or net assets and reflects the changes in accounting policy for exploration and evaluation 
expenditure as set out in note 2 (bb).  
 
Dividends 
No dividend was paid or declared during the year and the Directors do not recommend the payment of a 
dividend.  
 
 
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 
 
During the year Oilex has transitioned from a small oil and gas exploration company focused in Australia to a 
significant international oil and gas exploration and production company. Oilex now has interests in India, 
Oman, Australia and the Joint Petroleum Development Area (“JPDA”) between Timor-Leste and Australia 
and is continuing to drive diversification of its international portfolio through the Company’s strategy of 
acquiring high quality international exploration acreage in joint venture with its Indian alliance members.  
Oilex has signed Alliance Agreements with several of India’s large public sector companies or their 
subsidiaries to participate jointly in international oil and gas exploration and production projects. 
 
A detailed operations review is contained on pages 3 to 8. 
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ADOPTION OF AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING 
STANDARDS  
 
Oilex and the Company have prepared financial statements in accordance with the Australian Equivalents to 
International Financial Reporting Standards (“AIFRS”) from 1 July 2004. In accordance with the requirements 
of AASB 1: First-time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards, 
adjustments to the Company and Oilex’s accounts resulting from the introduction of AIFRS have been 
applied retrospectively to 2005 comparative figures excluding cases where optional exemptions available 
under AASB 1 have been applied. These consolidated accounts are the first financial statements of Oilex to 
be prepared in accordance with AIFRS. 
 
 
SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN STATE OF AFFAIRS 
 
On 7 December 2005 the Company issued 980,534 ordinary shares plus one free attaching Oilex option for 
every share issued, exercisable at $0.50 per share and expiring on 7 December 2008 for the purchase of 
98.04% of the issued capital for the unlisted company Independence Oil & Gas Limited (“IOGL”). The 
exercise of the options is conditional upon the acquisition by IOGL of an onshore petroleum permit in Timor-
Leste within the option period. All of these securities are subject to a 12 month escrow from the date of issue. 
Oilex will proceed to acquire the remaining 19,556 shares in IOGL giving Oilex 100% of IOGL.  
 
 
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER BALANCE DATE 
 
Share Placement  
On 28 July 2006 following shareholders’ approval a total of 23,600,000 fully paid ordinary shares were 
allotted at $0.85 per share raising gross proceeds of $20.06 million. In accordance with Accounting Standard 
AASB110: Events after the Balance Sheet Date, this transaction has been accounted for as an adjusting 
event as it provides evidence of a condition that existed at the reporting date.  
 
Issue of Shares  
On 1 August 2006 following shareholders’ approval a total of 2,500,000 fully paid ordinary shares were 
allotted to India Hydrocarbons Limited at $0.20 per share raising $500,000. In accordance with Accounting 
Standard AASB110: Events after the Balance Sheet Date, this transaction has been accounted for as an 
adjusting event as it provides evidence of a condition that existed at the reporting date. 
 
JPDA Block 06-103 
In August 2006 a consortium led by Oilex was awarded block 06-103 in the JPDA between Timor-Leste and 
Australia.  Oilex retains a 25% interest and operatorship of the block. Further details of this acquisition are 
found in the Operations Review. 
 
North West Shelf Permit WA-388-P 
In August 2006 a consortium led by Oilex was awarded permit WA-388-P located in the offshore Carnarvon 
Basin (North West Shelf) of Western Australia.  Oilex retains a 25% interest and operatorship of the block.  
Further details of this acquisition are found in the Operations Review. 
 
Sale of Queensland Assets 
In August 2006 Oilex signed a Share Sale and Purchase Agreement for the sale to Bow Energy Ltd (“Bow”) 
of its onshore Queensland oil and gas permit interests in the Bowen-Surat and Cooper-Eromanga Basins, for 
15 million shares and options with an effective date of 24 August 2006 subject to Bow shareholder approval 
by 31 October 2006. Further details of this sale are found in the Operations Review. 
 
Conversion to Public Company Limited By Shares  
With effect from 8 September 2006 (following shareholders’ approval on 28 July 2006) the Company 
changed its type from a no liability company to a limited company.  
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Change of Company Name  
Following shareholders’ approval on 28 July 2006, the Company’s name was changed from Oilex NL to 
Oilex Ltd with effect from 8 September 2006. 
 
Exercise of Options  
On 20 July 2006 LinQ Capital Limited exercised 500,000 unlisted options at $0.50 per share raising 
$250,000.  
 
LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS 
 
Other than the matters referred to elsewhere in this report, further information as to likely developments in 
the operations of Oilex and expected results of those operations would, in the opinion of the Directors, be 
speculative and not in the best interests of Oilex. 
 
 
FINANCIAL POSITION  
Capital Structure and Treasury Policy 
At the date of this report, Oilex has a total issued capital of 76,614,319 ordinary shares and 24,755,534 
unlisted options exercisable at prices between $0.20 and $1.50 per share. 
 
Cash management is reviewed on a regular basis by Oilex’s Chief Financial Officer and is reported to the 
Board of Directors on a monthly basis to ensure Oilex is able to meet its obligations as and when they fall 
due. Until sufficient operating cash flows are generated from its operations Oilex remains reliant on equity or 
debt funding to fund its exploration commitments and administration. 
 
Liquidity and Funding 
In order to fund Oilex’s exploration commitments in India, Oman and Australia Oilex has arranged a $5 
million mezzanine financing facility with LinQ Capital Limited and undertaken an equity placement of 23.6 
million shares, raising $20 million gross which was finalised in June 2006 subject to shareholder approval 
obtained on 28 July 2006.  
 
Oilex is not yet generating net cash inflows from operations but is hopeful that the re-development of the 
Cambay, Bhandut and Sabarmati fields in Gujarat, India, will begin to generate positive cash flows for Oilex 
during the 2006-2007 financial year. 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES 
 
Oilex’s operations are subject to environmental regulation under the Laws of the Commonwealth and States 
of Australia in relation to its oil and gas exploration and production activities in Australia. The majority of 
Oilex’s activities involve low level disturbance associated with its exploration drilling programmes.  The 
Directors actively monitor compliance with these regulations and as at the date of this report are not aware of 
any breaches in respect of these regulations. 
 
 
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS 
 
The relevant interest of each Director in the shares and options issued by the Company, as notified by the 
Directors to the Australian Stock Exchange in accordance with S205G(1) of the Corporations Act 2001, at 
the date of this report is as follows: 
 

 Number of Ordinary Shares  Number of Options Over Ordinary Shares  
 Direct Indirect Direct Indirect 
M.D.J. Cozijn  - 500,000 1,500,000 - 
B.H. McCarthy - 850,000 6,000,000 - 
G.I. Johnson  - - - 500,000 
R.G. Barnes 23,871 600,000 3,023,871 - 
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SHARE OPTIONS 
 
Options Granted to Directors and Officers of the Company 
During or since the end of the financial year, the Company granted options for no consideration over 
unissued ordinary shares in the Company to the following Directors and to the following executives of the 
Company as part of their remuneration: 
 

 No. Options Granted Exercise Price Expiry Date 
Executive Directors:    
B.H. McCarthy 1,000,000 $0.40 14 December 2008 
B.H. McCarthy 2,000,000 $0.50 14 December 2008 
B.H. McCarthy 3,000,000 $0.80 14 December 2009 
R.G. Barnes 1,000,000 $0.40 14 December 2008 
R.G. Barnes 1,000,000 $0.50 14 December 2008 
R.G. Barnes 1,000,000 $0.80 14 December 2009 
Other Officers:    
G.J. McCauley 250,000 $0.40 14 December 2008 
G.J. McCauley 250,000 $0.50 14 December 2008 
G.J. McCauley 250,000 $0.80 14 December 2009 
R.S. Paces 775,000 $0.50 31 July 2009 
R.S. Paces 775,000 $0.65 31 July 2009 
R.S. Paces 775,000 $0.90 31 July 2010 
A. Beckett 250,000 $0.45 31 July 2009 
A. Beckett 250,000 $0.55 31 July 2009 

 
Options issued to R.S. Paces and A. Beckett were granted on 31 July 2006. All other options above were 
granted during the financial year. No options were granted to Non-Executive Directors during or since the 
end of the financial year. 
 
 
Un-issued Shares Under Options 
 
At the date of this report unissued ordinary shares of the Company under option are: 
 

Expiry Date Exercise Price Number of Shares 
28 February 2008 $0.20 2,200,000 
  7 December 2008 $0.50 980,534 
14 December 2008 $0.40 2,250,000 
14 December 2008 $0.50 3,250,000 
16 February 2009 $0.50 1,000,000 
14 December 2009 $0.80 4,250,000 
31 December 2009 $1.00 500,000 
31 December 2009 $1.50 3,000,000 
31 March 2010 $0.50 4,500,000 
31 July 2009 $0.50 775,000 
31 July 2009 $0.65 775,000 
31 July 2009 $0.45 250,000 
31 July 2009 $0.55 250,000 
31 July 2010 $0.90 775,000 

  24,755,534 
 
All unvested options expire on the earlier of their expiry date or termination of the employee’s employment. 
These options do not entitle the holder to participate in any share issue of the Company or any other body 
corporate. 
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Shares Issued on Exercise of Options 
During the financial year the Company has not issued ordinary shares as a result of the exercise of options.  
Subsequent to year end on 20 July 2006 500,000 options exercisable at $0.50 were exercised by LinQ 
Capital Limited. 
 
 
INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 
 
Oilex paid insurance premiums in respect of legal costs insurance cover for the directors and officers of 
Oilex.  Oilex has not included details of the nature of the liabilities covered or the amount of the premium 
paid in respect of the directors’ liability and legal expense insurance contracts, as such disclosure is 
prohibited under the terms of the contract. 
 
 
PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF COMPANY  
 
No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any 
proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the 
Company for all or any part of those proceedings.  
 
The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.  
 
 
NON-AUDIT SERVICES 
 
The Company may decide to employ the auditor on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties 
where the auditor’s expertise and experience with Oilex is important.  Details of the amounts paid or payable 
to the auditor, Grant Thornton for audit and non-audit services provided during the year are set out below.  
 
The Board of Directors has considered the position and, in accordance with the advice received from the 
Audit Committee, is satisfied that the provision of the non-audit services is compatible with the general 
standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The Directors are satisfied 
that the provision of non-audit services by the auditor, as set out below, did not compromise the auditor 
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons: 

• all non-audit services have been reviewed by the Audit Committee to ensure they do not impact 
the impartiality and objectivity of the auditor; and  

• none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out 
in Professional Statement Fl, including reviewing or auditing the auditor’s own work, acting in a 
management or a decision-making capacity for the Company, acting as advocate for the 
Company or jointly sharing economic risk and rewards.  

 
During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the Company, 
its related practices and non-related audit firms. 
 

 Consolidated 
Amounts received or due and receivable by auditors for: 2006 

$ 
 2005 

$ 
Audit Services    
Grant Thornton 29,225  17,500 
    
Other Services including taxation, advisory and assurance    
Grant Thornton 550  16,825 
    
Total Remuneration 29,775  34,325 

 
 

 20



OILEX LTD 
ABN 50 078 652 632 

 
DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

 21
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PRINCIPLES OF COMPENSATION 
Remuneration of Directors and executives is referred to as compensation as defined in AASB 124. 
 
Compensation levels for key management personnel of Oilex are competitively set to attract and retain 
appropriately qualified and experienced directors and executives. The remuneration committee obtains 
independent advice on the appropriateness of compensation packages of both the Company and the 
consolidated group given trends in comparative companies both locally and internationally and the objectives 
of the Company’s compensation strategy. 
 
The compensation structures explained below are designed to attract suitably qualified candidates, reward 
the achievement of strategic objectives and achieve the broader outcome of creation of value for 
shareholders. The compensation structures take into account: 

• the capability and experience of the key management personnel; 
• the key management personnel’s ability to control the relevant segments’ performance; 
• Oilex’s performance including: 

- Oilex’s earnings 
- the growth in share price and delivering constant returns on shareholder wealth; and 

• the amount of incentives within each key management personnel’s compensation. 
 
Compensation packages include a mix of fixed compensation and long term performance-based incentives. 
 
Fixed Compensation 
Fixed compensation consists of base compensation as well as employer contributions to superannuation 
funds.  Compensation levels are reviewed annually by the remuneration committee through a process that 
considers individual, segment and overall performance of Oilex. In addition external consultants provide 
analysis and advice to ensure the directors’ and senior executives’ compensation is competitive in the 
market place. A senior executive’s compensation is also reviewed on promotion. 
 
Performance-linked Compensation 
Performance-linked compensation includes long-term incentives designed to reward key management 
personnel for growth in shareholder wealth. The long term incentive (“LTI”) is provided as options over 
ordinary shares of the Company. The change in share price is the key performance criteria for the LTI plan 
as the realised value arising from options issued is dependent upon an increase in the share price to above 
the exercise price of the options.  
 
Given Oilex is an exploration company that is not yet generating profits or net operating cash flows, it is the 
ability to improve the share price that largely determines the success of Oilex’s management team. The 
remuneration committee therefore considers that fixed compensation combined with an LTI component is 
generating the desired outcomes. 
 
Non-Executive Directors 
Total compensation for all non-executive directors is set based on advice from external advisors with 
reference to fees paid to other non-executive directors of comparable companies. Directors’/company 
secretary base fees are presently $32,700 per annum for non-executive directors and $109,000 for the 
chairman, split 50% each for Company Secretarial services and Director’s fees.  Directors’ fees cover all 
main board activities. 
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EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS 
 
The following table summarises the key terms and conditions of contracts between key executives and Oilex: 
 

Executive Position Contract Start Date Contract 
Termination Date 

Resignation 
Notice 

Required 

Unvested 
Options on 
Resignation

Termination 
notice required 

from Oilex 
Termination payment 
on notice from Oilex 

        
B.H. McCarthy Managing Director 23 February 2005 23 February 2008 3 months Forfeited 

(apart from 
options that 

have vested) 

3 months * 12 months fixed 
remuneration and any 
LTI options that have 
vested or that will vest 
during the notice period 

        
R.G. Barnes Technical Director 16 September 2005 16 September 2008 3 months Forfeited 

(apart from 
options that 

have vested) 

3 months * None 

        
G.J. McCauley Chief Financial 

Officer 
  3 October 2005 3 October 2008 3 months Forfeited 

(apart from 
options that 

have vested) 

3 months * None 

        
R.S. Paces Chief Operating 

Officer and Country 
Manager – India 

  5 May 2006 5 May 2009 6 months Forfeited 
(apart from 
options that 

have vested) 

6 months * 12 months fixed 
remuneration and any 
LTI options that have 
vested or that will vest 
during the notice period 

        
A. Beckett General Manager 

Operations  
24 January 2006 24 January 2008 1 month Forfeited 

(apart from 
options that 

have vested) 

1 month * None 

        
 
*  The Company may terminate the contract without notice if serious misconduct has occurred. In this case the termination payment is only the fixed remuneration 

earned until the date of termination. On termination with cause any unvested options will immediately be forfeited. 
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DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS’ REMUNERATION (COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED) – AUDITED 
 
Details of the nature and amount of each major element of remuneration of each director of the Company and each of the named company executives and relevant 
Oilex executives who receive the highest remuneration are: 
 

 

  Short-Term Post 
Employment  

Share-
Based 

Payments 

 Year Salary & 
Fees 

STI 
Cash 

Bonus 

Non 
Monetary 
Benefits 

Total 
Super-

annuation 
Benefits 

Other 
Long-
Term 

Termination 
Benefits 

Options 

Total 
Proportion of 
Remuneration 
Performance 

Related 

Value of 
Options as 

Proportion of 
Remuneration 

  $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ % % 
Non-Executive Directors             
M.D.J. Cozijn 2006 50,000 - - 50,000 59,000 - - - 109,000 - - 
(Chairperson)         2005 33,333 - - 33,333 57,500 - - - 90,833 - -
G.I. Johnson 2006 2,700 - - 2,700 30,000 - - - 32,700 - - 
          2005 -2,467 - 2,467 24,783 - - - 27,250 - -
             
Executive Directors             
B.H. McCarthy 2006 213,006 - - 213,006 19,171 - - 334,232 566,409 - 59% 
(Managing Director)           2005 62,769 - - 62,769 5,649 - - - 68,418 - -
R.G. Barnes (appointed Oct 05) 2006 208,500 - - 208,500 - - - 164,532 373,032 - 44% 
(Technical Director)             
S.L. Robertson (resigned Sept 05) 2006 36,391 - - 36,391 3,308 - - - 39,699 - - 
(Chief Financial Officer) 2005 89,445 - - 89,445 6,045 - - - 95,490 - - 
             
Other Executives             
G.J. McCauley (appointed Oct 05) 2006 19,113 - - 19,113 78,803 - - 39,254 137,170 - 29% 
(Chief Financial Officer)             
 R.S. Paces (appointed May 06) 2006 89,165 - - 89,165 2,462 - - - 91,627 - - 
(Chief Operating Officer and Country 
Manager – India) 

 
 

  
  

     
 

 A. Beckett (appointed Jan 06) 2006 208,731 - - 208,731 - - - - 208,731 - - 
(General Manager Operations)             
Total Compensation: key management  2006 827,606 - - 827,606 192,744 - - 538,018 1,558,368   
personnel (consolidated and 
company) 

 
2005       

  
188,014

 
- 

 
- 188,014 93,977

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 281,991

The directors of the Company are also the directors of the Company’s subsidiaries. No remuneration is received for directorships of subsidiaries. 
 
All key management personnel are employed by the parent entity. 
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Notes in Relation to the Table of Directors’ and Executive Officers Remuneration  
The fair value of the options is calculated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model and allocated to 
each reporting period evenly over the period from grant date to vesting date. The value disclosed is the 
portion of the fair value of the options allocated to this reporting period. In valuing the options, market 
conditions have been taken into account. 
 
The following factors and assumptions were used in determining the fair value of 2006 options on grant date: 
 

Grant Date Expiry Date 
Fair 

Value Per 
Option 

Exercise 
Price 

Price of 
Shares 

on Grant 
Date 

Expected 
Volatility 

Risk Free 
Interest 

Rate 
Dividend 

Yield 

14 December 2005 14 December 2008 $0.15 $0.40 $0.31 75.9% 5.5% - 
14 December 2005 14 December 2008 $0.13 $0.50 $0.31 75.9% 5.5% - 
14 December 2005 14 December 2009 $0.09 $0.80 $0.31 75.9% 5.5% - 
 
 
DETAILS OF PERFORMANCE RELATED REMUNERATION 
 
Details of Oilex’s policy in relation to the proportion of remuneration that is performance related is discussed 
in the Remuneration Report. 
 
 
EQUITY INSTRUMENTS 
 
All options refer to options over ordinary shares of the Company, which are exercisable on a one-for-one 
basis. 
 
 
Options Over Equity Instruments Granted as Compensation 
Details on options over ordinary shares in the Company that were granted as compensation to key 
management personnel during the reporting period and details on options that were vested during the 
reporting period are as follows: 
 

 
Number of 

Options 
Granted 

During 2006 
Grant Date 

Number 
of 

Options 
Vested 
During 
2006 

Fair Value of 
Options 
Granted 

During 2006 
$ 

Exercise 
Price of 
Options 
Granted 

During 2006 
$ 

Expiry Date of 
Options Granted 

During 2006 

Executive Directors      
B.H. McCarthy 1,000,000 14 December 2005 1,000,000 $0.15 $0.40 14 December 2008 
B.H. McCarthy 2,000,000 14 December 2005 - $0.13 $0.50 14 December 2008 
B.H. McCarthy 3,000,000 14 December 2005 - $0.09 $0.80 14 December 2009 
       
R.G. Barnes 1,000,000 14 December 2005 - $0.15 $0.40 14 December 2008 
R.G. Barnes 1,000,000 14 December 2005 - $0.13 $0.50 14 December 2008 
R.G. Barnes 1,000,000 14 December 2005 - $0.09 $0.80 14 December 2009 
       
Other Oilex Executives      
G.J. McCauley 250,000 14 December 2005 - $0.15 $0.40 14 December 2008 
G.J. McCauley 250,000 14 December 2005 - $0.13 $0.50 14 December 2008 
G.J. McCauley 250,000 14 December 2005 - $0.09 $0.80 14 December 2009 
 
Options were issued to R.S. Paces and A. Beckett subsequent to year end.  For details refer to the Share 
Options section of the Directors’ Report.  No other options have been granted to key management personnel 
since the end of the financial year. The options were provided at no cost to the recipients. 
 
All options expire on the earlier of their expiry date or termination of the individual’s employment other than 
options that have vested, which can be retained by the employee irrespective of termination or resignation. 
The options vest over one to three years of continuous service and are exercisable from vesting date to 
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expiry date. Further details, including grant dates and exercise dates regarding options granted to executives 
are in note 17 to the financial statements. 
 
Modification of Terms of Equity-Settled Share-based Payment Transactions 
No terms of equity-settled share-based payment transactions (including options granted as compensation to 
key management personnel) have been altered or modified by the issuing entity during the reporting period. 
 
Exercise of Options Granted as Compensation 
During the reporting period no shares were issued on the exercise of options previously granted as 
compensation. 
 
Analysis of Options Granted as Compensation 
Details of the vesting profile of the options granted during the year as remuneration to each director of the 
Company and each of the named company executives and relevant Oilex executives is detailed below. 
 

 Options Granted Financial Value Yet to Vest $ 

 Number Date 
% 

Vested 
in Year 

Forfeited 
in Year 

Years in 
Which 
Grant 
Vests 

Min Max (A) 

        

Executive Directors       
B.H. McCarthy 6,000,000 14 December 2005 16.7% - (B) - $539,296 
R.G. Barnes 3,000,000 14 December 2005 - - (B) - $370,261 
        
Other Oilex Executives       
G.J. McCauley 750,000 14 December 2005 - - (B) - $92,565 
 

(A) The maximum value of options yet to vest is not determinable as it depends on the market price of 
shares of the Company on the Australian Stock Exchange at the date the option is exercised.  These 
share prices represent a maximum price included in the volatility assumptions within the valuation of 
the options. 

(B) The options issued may vest and can be exercised as; one third one year from vesting date, two thirds 
two years after vesting date and in full three years from vesting date. All options that have vested can 
be retained by the employee upon resignation or termination of employment.  

 
 
Analysis of Movements in Options  
The movement during the reporting period, by value, of options over ordinary shares in the Company held by 
each company director and each of the named Company executives and relevant Oilex executives is 
detailed below. 
 

 Value of Options 

 
Granted in year 

$ (A) 
Exercised in year 

$ 
Forfeited in year 

$ 
Total option value in 

year $ 
     

B.H. McCarthy 686,636 - - 686,636 
R.G. Barnes 370,261 - - 370,261 
G.J. McCauley 92,565 - - 92,565 
 

(A) The value of options granted in the year is the fair value of the options calculated at grant date using 
the Black-Scholes model. The total value of the options granted is included in the table above. This 
amount is allocated to remuneration over the vesting period. 

 
There were no movements in options during the financial year for any other director or executive other than 
those disclosed above. 
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AUDITORS  
 
Grant Thornton continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001. 
 
 
AUDITORS INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 
 
The lead auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2006 has been received and can be 
found on page 27. 
 
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

………………………………………………….. ………………………………………………….. 
Mr M.D.J. Cozijn Dr B.H. McCarthy  
Chairman Managing Director 
 

West Perth, Western Australia  West Perth, Western Australia 
19 September 2006 19 September 2006 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 
 
 

 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 NOTE 2006 

$ 
2005 

$ 
 2006 

$ 
2005 

$ 
   

Revenue  4(a) 600,051 517,198  307,398 452,537 
       
Employees benefits expense   (1,074,492) (435,395)  (1,074,492) (435,395) 
Depreciation expense   (100,914) (39,362)  (69,419) (27,924) 
Exploration expenditure  4(b) (6,178,892) (4,161,506)  (4,741,463) (920,654) 
Impairment of loans to controlled entities  4(b) - -  (1,326,002) (3,705,632) 
Administration expense   (997,353) (530,477)  (994,364) (530,484) 
Other expenses  (823,617) (585,322)  (823,617) (454,350) 
Financial costs  (2,104,888) -  (2,104,888) - 
       
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX  (10,680,105) (5,234,864)  (10,826,847) (5,621,902) 
Income tax expense 5 - -  - - 
NET LOSS  (10,680,105) (5,234,864)  (10,826,847) (5,621,902) 
       
Basic loss per share  6 (0.215) (0.122)    
       
Diluted loss per share  6 (0.215) (0.122)    
 
The income statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements. 
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  CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 NOTE 2006 2005  2006 2005 
  $ $  $ $ 
       

Current Assets       
Cash and cash equivalents 7 21,262,211 8,137,627  21,144,106 8,117,678 
Trade and other receivables 8 1,457,402 29,327  1,419,759 1,250 
Inventories 9 1,066,701 519,510  1,040,286 494,262 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  23,786,314 8,686,464  23,604,151  8,613,190 
       
Non Current Assets       
Trade and other receivables 8 2,411,552 64,535  2,336,974 6,756 
Property, plant and equipment 11 485,498 228,852  376,332 103,032 
Financial Assets  12 - -  2,780 2,780 
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS  2,897,050 293,387  2,716,086 112,568 
       
TOTAL ASSETS  26,683,364 8,979,851  26,320,237 8,725,758 
       
Current Liabilities       
Trade and other payables 13 1,757,537 432,564  1,708,561 345,880 
Short term provisions 14 164,353 130,480  39,353 5,480 
Short term borrowings  15 5,000,000 -  5,000,000 - 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  6,921,890 563,044  6,747,914 351,360 
       
TOTAL LIABILITIES  6,921,890 563,044  6,747,914 351,360 
       
NET ASSETS  19,761,474 8,416,807  19,572,323 8,374,398 
       
Equity       
Issued capital  36,563,991 17,039,127  36,563,991 17,039,127 
Option reserve  2,499,908 -  2,499,908 - 
Accumulated losses  (19,302,425) (8,622,320)  (19,491,576) (8,664,729) 
       
TOTAL EQUITY  19,761,474 8,416,807  19,572,323 8,374,398 
       

 
The balance sheets are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.  
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 CONSOLIDATED 

 Issued Capital 
Option 

Reserve 
Accumulated 

Losses Total Equity 
 $ $ $ $ 

Balance as at 1 July 2004 5,295,262 - (3,387,456) 1,907,806 
Total recognised income and expense - - (5,234,864) (5,234,864) 
Total recognised income and expense for 
the year - - (5,234,864) (5,234,864) 
     
Transactions with equity holders in their 
capacity as equity holders:     
Shares issued 12,000,000 - - 12,000,000 
Capital raising costs (770,033) - - (770,033) 
Equity-settled transactions, net of tax 513,898 - - 513,898 
 11,743,865 - - 11,743,865 
Balance at 30 June 2005 17,039,127 - (8,622,320) 8,416,807 
     
Balance at 1 July 2005 17,039,127 - (8,622,320) 8,416,807 
Total recognised income and expense - - (10,680,105) (10,680,105) 
Total recognised income and expense for 
the year - - (10,680,105) (10,680,105) 
     
Transactions with equity holders in their 
capacity as equity holders:     
Shares issued 20,560,000 - - 20,560,000 
Capital raising costs  (1,337,546) - - (1,337,546) 
Equity-settled share based payment 
transactions 302,410 2,499,908 - 2,802,318 
 19,524,864 2,499,908 - 22,024,472 
Balance as at 30 June 2006 36,563,991 2,499,908 (19,302,425) 19,761,474 
 

 THE COMPANY 

 Issued Capital 
Option 

Reserve 
Accumulated 

Losses Total Equity 
 $ $ $ $ 

Balance as at 1 July 2004 5,295,262 - (3,042,827) 2,252,435 
Total recognised income and expense  - - (5,621,902) (5,621,902) 
Total recognised income and expense for 
the year - - (5,621,902) (5,621,902) 
     
Transactions with equity holders in their 
capacity as equity holders:     
Shares issued 12,000,000 - - 12,000,000 
Capital raising costs (770,033) - - (770,033) 
Equity-settled transactions, net of tax 513,898 - - 513,898 
 11,743,865 - - 11,743,865 
Balance at 30 June 2005 17,039,127 - (8,664,729) 8,374,398 
     
Balance at 1 July 2005 17,039,127 - (8,664,729) 8,374,398 
Total recognised income and expense  - - (10,826,847) (10,826,847) 
Total recognised income and expense for 
the year - - (10,826,847) (10,826,847) 
     
Transactions with equity holders in their 
capacity as equity holders:     
Shares issued 20,560,000 - - 20,560,000 
Capital raising costs  (1,337,546) - - (1,337,546) 
Equity-settled share based payment 
transactions 302,410 2,499,908 - 2,802,318 
 19,524,864 2,499,908 - 22,024,472 
Balance as at 30 June 2006 36,563,991 2,499,908 (19,491,576) 19,572,323 
 
The statements of changes in equity are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements. 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 
 
 

  CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 NOTE 2006 2005  2006 2005 
  $ $  $ $ 
       

Cash Flows From Operating Activities       
Inflows:       
Cash receipts from customers  509,587 96,509  241,080 - 
Interest received  278,767 300,674  269,368 291,111 
Management fees  22,200 66,088  22,200 161,426 
       
Outflows:       
Payments to suppliers and employees  (1,912,426) (1,495,739)  (1,905,269) (1,505,350) 
Interest paid  (136,655) -  (136,655) - 
Net Cash Flows Used In Operating 
Activities 18 (1,238,527) (1,032,468)  (1,509,276) (1,052,813) 
       
Cash Flows From Investing Activities       
Inflows:       
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and 
equipment 

 
25,704 7,500  25,704 7,500 

       
Outflows:       
Acquisition of petroleum interests  (2,337,607) -  (2,337,607) - 
Payments for exploration expenditure  (6,836,010) (3,685,286)  (5,363,268) (732,838) 
Acquisition of property, plant and 
equipment 

 
(386,057) (162,762)  (374,147) (25,504) 

Payment for permit bonds  (16,800) (24,754)  - (6,757) 
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash 
acquired 

 
 - -  - (2,780) 

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities  (9,550,770) (3,865,302)  (8,049,318) (760,379) 
       
Cash Flows From Financing Activities       
Inflows:       
Proceeds from the issue of share capital 28 (a & b) 20,560,000 12,000,000  20,560,000 12,000,000 
Proceeds from borrowings  5,000,000 34,194  5,000,000 20,789 
       
Outflows:       
Payment of transaction costs 28 (a & b) (1,337,546) (770,033)  (1,337,546) (770,033) 
Borrowing costs  (308,573) -  (308,573) - 
Repayment of borrowings  - (425)  - (425) 
Advances to subsidiaries  - -  (1,328,859) (3,091,119) 
Net Cash Flows From Financing 
Activities 

 
23,913,881 11,263,736  22,585,022 8,159,212 

       
NET INCREASE(DECREASE) IN CASH 
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 
13,124,584 6,365,966  13,026,428 6,346,020 

       
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT  
1 JULY 2005 

 
8,137,627 1,771,661  8,117,678 1,771,658 

       
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 
30 JUNE 2006 7 21,262,211 8,137,627  21,144,106 8,117,678 

 
The statements of cash flows are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements. 
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NOTE 1 – CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 
The financial report of Oilex Ltd (the “Company”) for the year ended 30 June 2006 was authorised for issue 
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 12 September 2006. Oilex Ltd is a limited liability 
company incorporated in Australia whose shares are publicly traded on the Australian Stock Exchange 
(“ASX”) and on the AIM Market of the London Stock Exchange (“AIM”). 
 
The nature of the operations and principle activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to 
as “Oilex”) are the exploration, evaluation, development and production of hydrocarbons. 
 
 
NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
a) Statement of Compliance 

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards (“AASBs”) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board 
(“AASB”), Urgent Issues Group Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001. International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRSs”) form the basis of AASBs adopted by the AASB, and for the purpose of this report 
are called Australian Equivalents to IFRS (“AIFRS”) to distinguish from previous Australian GAAP 
(“AGAAP”). The financial reports of Oilex and the Company also comply with IFRSs and 
interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board. 
 
This is Oilex’s first financial report prepared in accordance with AASBs, being AIFRS and IFRS, and 
AASB 1:First-Time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards 
has been applied. An explanation of how the transition to AIFRS has affected the reported financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of Oilex and the Company is provided in note 29. 
 

b) Basis of Preparation 
The financial report is presented in Australian dollars. Oilex has elected to early adopt the following 
accounting standards and amendments: 
 
• AASB 119 Employee Benefits (December 2004) 
• AASB 2004-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (December 2004) amending AASB 

1 First-Time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (July 
2004), AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements and AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures 

• AASB 2005-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (May 2005) amending AASB 139 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 

• AASB 2005-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (June 2005) amending AASB 119 
Employee Benefits (either July or December 2004) 

• AASB 2005-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (June 2005) amending AASB 139 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure 
and Presentation, AASB 1 First-Time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial 
Reporting Standards (July 2004), AASB 1023 General Insurance Contracts and AASB 1038 Life 
Insurance Contracts 

• AASB 2005-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (June 2005) amending AASB 1 
First-Time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (July 
2004), and AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 

• AASB 2005-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (June 2005) amending AASB 3 
Business Combinations 

• AASB 2006-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (January 2006) amending AASB 
121 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (July 2004) 
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NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
b) Basis of Preparation (continued) 

• UIG 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease 
• UIG 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental 

Rehabilitation Funds 
• UIG 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under AASB 129 Financial Reporting in 

Hyperinflationary Economies 
• UIG 8 Scope of AASB 2. 

 
Issued Standards not Early Adopted 

The following standards and amendments were available for early adoption but have not been applied 
by Oilex in these financial statements: 
• AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure (August 2005) replacing the presentation requirements 

of financial instruments in AASB 132. AASB 7 is applicable for annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2007; 

• AASB 2005-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (September 2005) requires that 
liabilities arising from the issue of financial guarantee contracts are recognised in the balance 
sheet. AASB 2005-9 is applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2006; 

• AASB 2005-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (September 2005) makes 
consequential amendments to AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation, 
AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, AASB 114 Segment Reporting, AASB 117 
Leases, AASB 133 Earnings Per Share, AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement, AASB 1 First-Time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial 
Reporting Standards, AASB 4 Insurance Contracts, AASB 1023 General Insurance Contracts and 
AASB 1038 Life Insurance Contracts, arising from the release of AASB 7. AASB 2005-10 is 
applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007. 

 
Oilex plans to adopt AASB 7, AASB 2005-9 and AASB 2005-10 in the 2008 financial year. 
 
The initial application of AASB 7 and AASB 2005-10 is not expected to have an impact on the financial 
results of the Company and Oilex as the standard and the amendment are concerned only with 
disclosures. 
 
The financial report is prepared on the accrual basis and is based on historical cost. 
 
The preparation of a financial report in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires 
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies 
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements 
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. These accounting policies have been consistently applied by 
each entity in Oilex. 
 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 
periods. 
 
Judgements made by management in the application of Australian Accounting Standards that have a 
significant effect on the financial report and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in 
the next year are discussed in note 2(d). 
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NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
b) Basis of Preparation (continued) 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the 
consolidated financial report and in preparing an opening AIFRS balance sheet at 1 July 2004 for the 
purposes of the transition to Australian Accounting Standards – AIFRS. 
 
The accounting policies have been applied consistently by all entities in Oilex. 
 

c) Basis of Consolidation 
(i) Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the 
power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to 
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are 
exercisable or convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are 
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the 
date that control ceases. All subsidiaries have a June financial year end.  
 
Investments in subsidiaries are carried at their cost of acquisition in the Company’s financial 
statements, subject to impairment testing. 
 

(ii) Joint Ventures 
Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities Oilex has joint control, established by 
contractual agreement. 
 

(iii) Jointly Controlled Operations and Assets 
The interests of the Company and Oilex in unincorporated joint ventures and jointly controlled 
assets are brought to account by recognising in its financial statements the assets it controls, the 
liabilities that it incurs, the expenses it incurs and its share of income that it earns from the sale of 
goods or services by the joint venture. 
 

(iv) Transactions Eliminated on Consolidation 
Intragroup balances and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses arising from 
intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. 

 
d) Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions 

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are often determined based on estimates and 
assumptions of future events. In the process of applying Oilex’s accounting policies, management has 
made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

 
(i) Exploration and Evaluation Assets 

Oilex‘s accounting policy for exploration and evaluation expenditure is set out as in note 2(w). The 
application of this policy necessarily requires management to make certain estimates and 
assumptions as to future events and circumstances, in particular, the assessment of whether 
economic quantities of reserves have been found. Any such estimates and assumptions may 
change as new information becomes available. If, after having capitalised expenditure under our 
policy, we conclude that we are unlikely to recover the expenditure by future exploitation or sale, 
then the relevant capitalised amount will be written off to the income statements. 

 
(ii) Rehabilitation Obligations 

Oilex estimates the future removal costs of onshore oil and gas production facilities, wells and 
pipeline at the time of installation of the assets. In most instances, removal of assets occurs many 
years into the future. This requires judgemental assumptions regarding removal date, future 
environmental legislation, the extent of reclamation activities required, the engineering 
methodology for estimating cost, future removal technologies in determining the removal  cost,  and  
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NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

(ii) Rehabilitation Obligations (continued) 
asset specific discount rates to determine the present value of these cash flows. For more detail 
regarding the policy in respect of provision for rehabilitation refer to note 2(r). 
 
Oilex recognised a provision for site rehabilitation for its Rookwood producing asset in Queensland 
of $125,000 in the 30 June 2006 financial statements (2005; $125,000). The provision was 
recognised as a current liability as there is no operating production license for this area of interest. 
 

(iii) Share-based Payment Transactions 
Oilex measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees and financiers by reference 
to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value of 
employee share based payments is determined using the Black-Scholes model, using the 
assumption detailed in note 17. 

 
e) Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognised in the income statement to the extent that it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to Oilex and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition 
criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised: 

 
(i) Sale of Goods 

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the 
buyer. Risks and rewards of ownership are considered passed to the buyer at the time of delivery 
of the goods to the customer. 
 

(ii) Rendering of Services 
Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the 
customers. 
 
All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (“GST”).  

 
f) Net Financing Costs 

Net financing costs comprise interest payable on borrowings calculated using the effective interest 
method, interest receivable on funds invested and foreign exchange gains and losses. Borrowing 
costs are expensed as incurred and included in net financing costs. Interest income is recognised in 
the income statement as it accrues, using the effective interest method. 
 

g) Leases 
The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent 
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. 
 
(i) Operating Leases 

Leases in which Oilex retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased 
asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating 
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the 
lease term on the same basis as rental income. 
 
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statements on a straight line 
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the income 
statements as an integral part of the total lease expense and are spread over the lease term. 

 
h) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposits and short-term deposits with an 
original maturity of three months or less.  
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i) Trade and Other Receivables 

Trade and other receivables are stated at their amortised cost less impairment losses [see accounting 
policy 2(o)]. 
 

j) Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and 
selling expenses. 
 

k) Foreign Currency 
Both the functional and presentation currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is Australian dollars 
(“A$”). Each entity in Oilex determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial 
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. 
 
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the 
exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. 
 
All exchange differences in the consolidated financial report are taken to profit or loss. 
 

l) Income Tax 
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is 
recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in 
equity, in which case it is recognised in equity. 
 
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of 
previous years. 
 
Deferred tax is provided for using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and 
the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences for the initial recognition 
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit and differences relating to 
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future 
are not provided for. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of 
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. 
 
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it 
is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 
 
(i) Tax Consolidation 

The Company and its wholly-owned Australian resident entities have formed a tax-consolidated 
group with effect from 1 July 2004 and are therefore taxed as a single entity from that date.  The 
head entity within the tax-consolidated group is Oilex Ltd. 
 
Current tax expense/income, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets arising from 
temporary differences of the members of the tax-consolidated group are recognised in the 
separate financial statements of the members of the tax-consolidated group using the ‘separate 
taxpayer within group’ approach by reference to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 
the separate financial statements of each entity and the tax values applying under tax 
consolidation. 
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m) Goods and Services Tax 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except: 
• When the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation 

authority, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as 
part of the expense item as applicable; and 

• Receivables and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST included. 
 
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 
receivables or payables in the balance sheet. 
 
Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis and the GST component of 
cash flows arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the 
taxation authority, are classified as operating cash flows. 
 
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable 
to, the taxation authority. 
 

n) Property, Plant and Equipment 
(i) Owned Assets 

Plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct 
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and 
restoring the site on which they are located and an appropriate proportion of overheads. 
 

(ii) Subsequent Costs 
Oilex recognises in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of 
replacing part of such an item when that cost is incurred if it is probable that the future economic 
benefits embodied within the item will flow to Oilex and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. All other costs are recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred. 
 

(iii) Depreciation 
Depreciation is charged to the income statement using the reducing balance method over the 
estimated useful life of the assets. The estimated useful lives in the current and comparative 
periods are as follows: 

• Motor Vehicles –  over 4 to 7 years 
• Plant and equipment –  over 2 to 7 years 
• Office furniture –  over 2 to 10 years 

 
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed and adjusted if 
appropriate, at each financial year end. 
 

(iv) Impairment 
The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, 
with recoverable amounts being estimated when events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying value may be impaired. 
 
The recoverable amount of plant and equipment is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and 
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
 
For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is 
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, unless the asset’s value in 
use can be estimated to be close to its fair value. 
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n) Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)  

(iv) Impairment (continued)  
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash-generating units exceeds its 
estimated recoverable amount. The asset or cash-generating unit is then written down to its 
recoverable amount. 
 
For plant and equipment, impairment losses are recognised in the income statement as 
depreciation expenses. 
 

(v) Derecognition and Disposal 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. 
 
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the 
year the asset is derecognised. 
 

o) Impairment 
The carrying amount of Oilex’s assets other than inventories, are reviewed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, Oilex makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable 
amount.  
 
(i) Calculation of Recoverable Amount 

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use 
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that 
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets and the asset’s value in 
use cannot be estimated to be close to its fair value. In such cases the asset is tested for 
impairment as part of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs. When the carrying amount of 
an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or cash-generating 
unit is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 
 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses relating to continuing operations are 
recognised in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset. 
 

(ii) Reversals of Impairment 
An assessment is also made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that 
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is 
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s 
recoverable amount since the last impairment was recognised. If that is the case the carrying 
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no 
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such a reversal is recognised in 
profit or loss. After a reversal the depreciation change is adjusted in future periods to allocate the 
asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systemic basis over its remaining 
useful life. 
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o)  Impairment (continued) 

(iii) Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities 
I. Current Accounting Policy 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is derecognised when: 
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 
• Oilex retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an 

obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party; or 
• Oilex has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has 

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset. 

 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, 
cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in profit and loss. 
 

II. Comparative Period Policy 
A financial asset was derecognised when the contractual right to receive or exchange cash no 
longer existed. A financial liability was derecognised when the contractual obligation to deliver or 
exchange cash no longer existed. 

 
p) Trade and Other Payables 

Trade and other payables are stated at their amortised cost. Trade payables are non-interest bearing 
and are normally settled on 30 day terms. 
 

q) Interest-bearing Borrowings 
Oilex has elected to apply the option available under AASB 1 of adopting AASB 132 and AASB 139 
from 1 July 2005. Outlined below are the relevant policies for interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
applicable for the years ending 30 June 2006 and 30 June 2005. 
 
(i) Accounting Policies Applicable for the Year Ending 30 June 2006 

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received 
less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost with any difference between cost and 
redemption value being recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings on 
effective interest basis. 
 

(ii) Accounting Policies Applicable for the Year Ending 30 June 2005 
All borrowings were measured at the principal amount. Interest was recognised as an expense as 
it accrued. 
 

r) Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when Oilex has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions 
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and where appropriate, the risks specific to the 
liability. 
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r) Provisions (continued)  

(i) Site Rehabilitation 
Provisions are made for an oil and gas field’s site rehabilitation on an incremental basis during 
the life of the field (which includes the field plant closure phase). Provisions include reclamation, 
plant closure, waste site closure and monitoring activities. These costs have been determined on 
the basis of current costs, current legal requirements and current technology. Changes in 
estimates are dealt with on a prospective basis. 
 
Oilex recognised a provision for site rehabilitation for its Rookwood producing asset in 
Queensland of $125,000 in the 30 June 2005 financial statements. The provision was recognised 
as a current liability as there is no operating production license for this area of interest. 
 

s) Employee Leave Benefits 
(i) Wages, Salaries, Annual Leave and Sick Leave 

Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salaries, annual leave and sick leave that are 
expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date represent present obligations 
resulting from employees services provided to reporting date. The liabilities are calculated at 
undiscounted amounts based on remuneration wage and salary rates that Oilex expects to pay 
as at reporting date.  
 

(ii) Long-term Service Benefits 
Oilex’s net obligation in respect of long-term service benefits is the amount of future benefit that 
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The obligation 
is calculated using expected future increases in wage and salary rates including related on-costs 
and expected settlement dates, and is discounted using the rates attached to the Commonwealth 
Government Bonds at the balance sheet date which have maturity dates approximating to the 
terms of Oilex’s obligations. 
 

t) Share-based Payment Transactions 
Employee options allow Oilex employees to acquire shares of the Company. The fair value of options 
granted is recognised as an employee expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value 
is measured at grant date and spread over the period during which the employees become 
unconditionally entitled to the options. Options are also provided as part of consideration for services 
by financiers. The fair value of the options granted is measured using the Black-Scholes model, taking 
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The amount recognised 
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest except where 
forfeiture is only due to share prices not achieving the threshold for vesting.  
 

u) Contributed Equity 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new 
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 
 

v) Earnings Per Share 
Basic earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted to 
exclude any costs of servicing equity (other than dividends), divided by the weighted average number 
of ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element. 
 
Diluted earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted 
for: 
• Costs of servicing equity (other than dividends); 
• The after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that 

have not been recognised as expenses; and 
• Other non-discretionary changes in revenues or expenses during the period that would result 

from the dilution of potential ordinary shares. 
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v) Earning Per Share (continued)  

divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares, 
adjusted for any bonus element. 
 

w) Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure 
Exploration and evaluation expenditure in respect of each area of interest is accounted for using the 
successful efforts method of accounting. The successful efforts method requires all exploration and 
evaluation expenditure to be expensed in the period it is incurred, until an economic commercial 
discovery has been delineated.  

 
The costs of drilling exploration wells are initially expensed pending the results of the well. Costs are 
capitalised where the well does result in the successful discovery of economically recoverable 
hydrocarbons. 
 
An area of interest refers to an exploration permit for exploration and evaluation expenditure. Where a 
successful discovery of economically recoverable hydrocarbons exists, the definition of an area of 
interest is narrowed to the individual geological area where the presence of oil or a natural gas field 
exists, and in most cases will comprise an individual oil or gas field. 
 
Capitalised exploration and evaluation expenditure is subject to half-yearly impairment testing. 
Exploration and evaluation expenditure is carried forward on the balance sheet where: 
• The expenditure on successful wells and pre-development costs relates to an exploration 

discovery and such expenditure is expected to be recovered through successful development and 
commercial exploitation of the area of interest; or 

• The exploration activities in the area of interest relating to new exploration assets acquired have 
not yet reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessment of the existence of economically 
recoverable reserves and active and significant operations in, or in relation to, those area of 
interest are continuing. 

 
When the technical and commercial feasibility of an undeveloped oil or gas field has been 
demonstrated and commercial development has been approved by the Board of Directors, the 
exploration and evaluation expenditure related to that field is transferred to development expenditure. 
 

x) Development Expenditure 
Development expenditure costs include past exploration and evaluation costs, pre-production 
development costs, development drilling, development studies and other subsurface expenditure 
pertaining to that area of interest. Costs related to surface plant and equipment and any associated 
land and buildings are accounted for as property, plant and equipment. 
 
The definition of an area of interest for development expenditure is narrowed from the exploration 
permit for exploration and evaluation expenditure to the individual geological area where the presence 
of oil or a natural gas field exists, and in most cases will comprise an individual oil or gas field. 
 
Development expenditure is reviewed for impairment at each reporting date where there is an 
indication that the individual geological area may be impaired [refer note 2(o)]. 
 
(i) Amortisation 

Amortisation is not charged on costs carried forward in respect of areas of interest in the 
development phase until production commences. When production commences, carried forward 
development costs are amortised on a units of production basis over the life of economically 
recoverable reserves. 
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NOTE 2 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)  
 
y) Segment Reporting 

A segment is a distinguishable component of Oilex that is engaged either in providing products or 
services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic 
environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from 
those of other segments. 
 

z) Financial Instruments  
(i) Recognition   

Financial instruments are initially measured at cost on trade date, which includes transaction 
costs, when the related contractual rights or obligations exist. Subsequent to initial recognition 
these instruments are measured as set out below.  
 

(ii) Loans and Receivables  
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active market and are stated at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method.  
 

(iii) Available-for-Sale Financial Assets  
Available-for-sale financial assets include any financial assets not included in the above 
categories. Available-for-sale financial assets are reflected at fair value. Unrealised gains and 
losses arising from changes in fair value are taken directly to equity.  
 

(iv) Financial Liabilities  
Non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost, comprising original debt less 
principal payments and amortisation.  
 

(v) Fair Value  
Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation 
techniques are applied to determine the fair value for all unlisted securities, including recent arm’s 
length transactions, reference to similar instruments and option pricing models.  
 

(vi) Impairment  
At each reporting date, the group assess whether there is objective evidence that a financial 
instrument has been impaired. In the case of available-for-sale financial instruments, a prolonged 
decline in the value of the instrument is considered to determine whether impairment has arisen. 
Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.  
 

aa) Interests in Joint Ventures   
Oilex’s share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of joint venture operations are included in 
the appropriate items of the consolidated financial statements. Details of Oilex’s interests are shown at 
Note 23.  
 
Oilex’s interests in joint venture entities are brought to account using the equity method of accounting 
in the consolidated financial statements. Oilex’s interests in joint venture entities are brought to 
account using the cost method.  

 
bb) Change in Accounting Policy  

Until 30 June 2005, Oilex adopted the full cost method of accounting for exploration and evaluation 
expenditure. Under this method Oilex capitalised all costs associated with its exploration and 
evaluation expenditure on an area of interest basis, with the areas of interest being the relevant 
exploration permit.  
 
During the 2006 financial year the Directors of the Company decided to adopt a revised policy based 
on the Successful Efforts approach. Under this revised policy all exploration and evaluation 
expenditure is to be expensed in the period it is incurred, until an economic commercial discovery has 
been delineated.  
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NOTE 2 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
bb) Change in Accounting Policy (continued) 

The costs of drilling exploration wells are initially expensed pending the results of the well. Costs are 
capitalised where the well does result in the successful discovery of economically recoverable 
hydrocarbons. 
 
An area of interest under successful efforts also refers to an exploration permit for exploration and 
evaluation expenditure. Where a successful discovery of economically recoverable hydrocarbons 
exists, the definition of an area of interest is narrowed to the individual geological area where the 
presence of oil or a natural gas field exists, and in most cases will comprise an individual oil or gas 
field. 
 
The aggregate effect of the change in accounting policy of the financial statements to 30 June 2006 is 
as follows (no taxation effect results from these changes): 
 

Previously Stated Adjustment Restated 
June 2006 June 2006 June 2006 CONSOLIDATED 

$ $ $ 
Income Statement     
Exploration Expenditure  (5,758,362) (420,530) (6,178,892) 
    
Balance Sheet    
Deferred exploration and evaluation expenditure  420,530 (420,530) - 
    
Basic loss per share (cents per share)  (0.207) (0.008) (0.215) 
Diluted loss per share (cents per share)  (0.207) (0.008) (0.215) 
 

Previously Stated Adjustment Restated 
June 2005 June 2005 June 2005 CONSOLIDATED 

$ $ $ 
Income Statement     
Exploration Expenditure  (3,947,608) (213,898) (4,161,506) 
    

Balance Sheet    
Deferred exploration and evaluation expenditure  213,898 (213,898) - 
    
Basic loss per share (cents per share)  (0.117) (0.005) (0.122) 
Diluted loss per share (cents per share)  (0.117) (0.005) (0.122) 

 
 
NOTE 3 – SEGMENT REPORTING 
 
Segment information is presented in respect of Oilex’s business and geographical segments. The primary 
format, geographical segments, is based on Oilex’s management and internal reporting structure. 
 

(a) Geographical Segments 
The petroleum exploration and production segment is managed on a worldwide basis, but as at 
30 June 2006 operate in two principal geographical areas, India and Australia.  
 

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as 
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly income-
earning assets and revenue, interest-bearing loans, borrowings and expenses, and corporate 
assets and expenses. 
 

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment 
assets that are expected to be used for more than one period. 
 

(b) Business Segments 
Oilex operates in one business segment, being the petroleum exploration and production 
industry.   
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NOTE 3 – SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 
 

(c) Geographical Segments 
 

 INDIA AUSTRALIA GROUP & 
UNALLOCATED 

CONSOLIDATED 

 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 
 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

 
Revenue      
Total Revenue  - - 283,254 517,198 316,797 - 600,051 517,198
    600,051 517,198
     
Segment Result (2,731,090) (640,275) (1,940,264) (4,594,589) (3,903,863) - (8,575,217) (5,234,864)
Loss before financing 
expenses    (8,575,217) (5,234,864)
Financing expense     (2,104,888) -
Income tax    - -
Loss for the period    (10,680,105) (5,234,864)
     
Segment Assets 1,131,167 - 1,581,248 8,979,581 23,970,949 - 26,683,364 8,979,851
Total assets    26,683,364 8,979,851
     
Segment Liabilities 861,399 - 273,595 563,044 5,786,896 - 6,921,890 563,044
Total liabilities    6,921,890 563,044
     
Other      
Acqusition of non-
current segment 
assets  120,495 - - 162,762 265,566 - 386,061 162,762
Depreciation of 
segment assets  9,217 - 28,088 39,362 63,609 - 100,914 39,362
Other non-cash 
segment expenses  - - - 300,000 2,499,908 - 2,499,908 300,000
 
 
NOTE 4 – REVENUE AND EXPENSES  
 

 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 2006 2005  2006 2005 
 $ $  $ $ 
      

Loss from ordinary activities before income tax has been determined after the following revenues and (expenses) 
      
(a)   Revenue       
        - Oil sales  283,254 147,955  - - 
        - Interest received  278,767 303,156  269,368 291,111 
        - Management fees  38,030 66,087  38,030 161,426 
 600,051 517,198  307,398 452,537 
      
(b)   Significant Expenses      
        
       - Exploration expenditure  (6,178,892) (4,161,506)  (4,741,463) (920,654) 
      
       - Impairment of loans to controlled entities   - -  (1,326,002) (3,705,632) 
      
       - Share based payments  (2,389,178) (300,000)  (2,389,178) (300,000) 
      
      
(c)   Operating Lease Rentals  (190,093) (47,491)  (190,093) (47,491) 
      
 

 44



OILEX LTD 
ABN 50 078 652 632 

 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 
 
NOTE 5 – INCOME TAX EXPENSE 
 
The prima facie income tax, using rates applicable in the country of operation, on loss from ordinary activities 
differs from the income tax provided in the financial report as follows; 
 

 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 2006 2005  2006 2005 
 $ $  $ $ 
      

Loss before tax (10,680,105) (5,234,864)  (10,826,847) (5,621,902) 
Income tax using the domestic corporation tax 
rate of 30% (2005: 30%) (3,204,032) (1,570,459)  (3,248,054) (1,686,571) 
Non-deductible expenses      

Share based payments 749,972 -  749,972 - 
Other non-deductible expenses 32,235 (92,528)  32,235 (92,528) 

 (2,421,825) (1,662,987)  (2,465,847) (1,779,099) 
      
Deferred tax asset on temporary differences 
and tax losses not brought to account at 
balance date as realisation is not regarded 
probable 2,421,825 1,662,987  2,465,847 1,779,099 
 
Income Tax Expense for the Year - -  - - 
      

 
Unrecognised Deferred Tax Assets Not 
Brought to Account 

     

Temporary differences      
Other 277,650 (339,623)  240,150 815,310 

Losses available for offset against future 
taxable income 4,449,864 2,349,553  2,703,542 1,355,825 
 
Deferred Tax Asset Not Brought to Account 4,727,514 2,009,930  2,943,692 2,171,135 
      
The deductible temporary differences and tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation. 
 
The deferred tax asset not brought to account for the 2006 financial year will only be obtained if: 

(i) Future assessable income is derived of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit to 
be realised; 

(ii) The conditions for deductibility imposed by the tax legislation continue to be complied with; and 
(iii) The companies are able to meet the continuity of ownership and/or continuity of business tests. 

 
Tax Consolidation 
In accordance with the tax consolidation legislation the Company as the head entity of the Australia tax-
consolidated group has assured the deferred tax assets initially recognised by members of the tax 
consolidated group. 
 
 
NOTE 6 – LOSS PER SHARE 
 

(a) Basic Loss Per Share 
The calculation of basic loss per share at 30 June 2006 was based on the loss attributable to 
ordinary shareholders of $10,680,105 (2005: loss of $5,234,864) and a weighted average number 
of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year ended 30 June 2006 of 49,574,148 
(2005: 42,970,588), calculated as follows: 
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NOTE 6 – LOSS PER SHARE (continued)  
 

(b) Loss Attributable to Ordinary Shareholders 
CONSOLIDATED 

 2006 2005 
   

Loss for the Period 10,680,105 5,234,864
   

 
(c) Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares 

 
Issued ordinary shares at 1 July 49,006,285 33,957,007 
Effect of shares issued  567,863 9,013,581 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 30 June 49,574,148 42,970,588 

 
(d) Diluted Loss Per Share 

The Company’s potential ordinary shares, being its options granted, are not considered dilutive 
as the conversion of these options would result in a decrease in the net loss per share. 

 
 
NOTE 7 – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

 

 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 2006 2005  2006 2005 
 $ $  $ $ 
      

Cash at bank and on hand  526,680 385,283 408,575 365,334
Short–term bank deposits (i) 20,735,531 7,752,344 20,735,531 7,752,344
  
Total cash and cash equivalents 21,262,211 8,137,627 21,144,106 8,117,678

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 5.44% (2005: 5.25%). 
 
(i) Included in the balance at 30 June 2006 is an amount of $19,222,454 relating to adjusting events in 

accordance with Accounting Standard AASB110: Events after the Balance Sheet Date. These 
transactions have been accounted for as adjusting events as this provides evidence of a condition that 
existed at the reporting date; see note 28 (a) and (b).  

 
 
NOTE 8 – TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 

 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 2006 2005  2006 2005 
 $ $  $ $ 
      

CURRENT      
Joint venture receivables 1,214,416 -  1,214,416 - 
Other receivables 242,986 29,327  205,343 1,250 
 1,457,402 29,327  1,419,759 1,250 
      
NON-CURRENT      
Permit bonds 81,334 64,535  6,756 6,756 
Advance on acquisition of petroleum interests * 2,330,218 -  2,330,218 - 
Loans to be controlled entities - -  1,326,002 3,705,632 
Impairment of loans – controlled entities  - -  (1,326,002) (3,705,632) 
Total trade and other receivables – non current 2,411,552 64,535  2,336,974 6,756 
 
* In the event of termination of the agreement to acquire the petroleum interests the advance will be repaid in full 
provided that termination is not the result of a breach of the agreement by Oilex in which case 50% of the advance is 
refundable to Oilex, see note 25(c).  
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NOTE 9 – INVENTORIES 
 

 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 2006 2005  2006 2005 
 $ $  $ $ 
      

Oil on hand – net realisable value 26,415 25,248  - - 
Field consumables – cost 1,040,286 494,262  1,040,286 494,262 
Total Inventories 1,066,701 519,510  1,040,286 494,262 
 
 
NOTE 10 – EXPLORATION EXPENDITURE 
 

 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 2006 2005  2006 2005 
 $ $  $ $ 
      

Reconciliation      
Carrying amount at beginning of year - -  - - 
Exploration expenditure incurred during the 
year 5,758,363 4,161,506  4,320,934 920,654 
Acquisition of exploration assets 420,529 -  420,529 - 
Write-off of exploration assets (6,178,892) (4,161,506)  (4,741,463) (920,654) 
Carrying amount at end of year - -  - - 
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NOTE 11 – PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 

 CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY 

 
Motor 

Vehicles 
Plant and 

Equipment 
Office 

Furniture Total 
Motor 

Vehicles 
Plant and 

Equipment 
Office 

Furniture Total 
 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Cost         
Balance as at 1 July 2004 45,377 52,146 24,293 121,816 45,377 52,146 24,293 121,816 
Other acquisitions - 154,600 8,162 162,762 - 17,342 8,162 25,504 
Disposals        - (7,500) - (7,500) - (7,500) - (7,500)
Balance as at 30 June 2005 45,377 199,246 32,455 277,078 45,377 61,988 32,455 139,820 
         
Balance as at 1 July 2005 45,377 199,246 32,455 277,078 45,377 61,988 32,455 139,820 
Other acquisitions 45,257 310,328 33,404 388,989 45,257 294,859 33,404 373,520 
Disposals        (45,377) (250) - (45,627) (45,377) (250) - (45,627)
Balance as at 30 June 2006 45,257 509,324 65,859 620,440 45,257 356,597 65,859 467,713 
         
Depreciation and Impairment 
Losses 

        

Balance as at 1 July 2004 56 7,859 949 8,864 56 7,859 949 8,864 
Depreciation charge for the year 10,192 25,530 3,640 39,362 10,192 14,092 3,640 27,924 
Balance as at 30 June 2005 10,248 33,389 4,589 48,226 10,248 21,951 4,589 36,788 
         
Balance as at 1 July 2005 10,248 33,389 4,589 48,226 10,248 21,951 4,589 36,788 
Depreciation charge for the year 9,039 82,919 8,956 100,914 9,667 50,796 8,956 69,419 
Disposals (14,198) -    - (14,198) (14,826) - - (14,826)
Balance as at 30 June 2006 5,089 116,308 13,545 134,942 5,089 72,747 13,545 91,381 
         
Carrying Amounts         
At 1 July 2004 45,321 44,287 23,344 112,952 45,321 44,287 23,344 112,952 
At 30 June 2005 35,129 165,857 27,866 228,852 35,129 40,037 27,866 103,032 
         
At 1 July 2005 35,129 165,857 27,866 228,852 35,129 40,037 27,866 103,032 
At 30 June 2006 40,168 393,016 52,314 485,498 40,168 283,850 52,314 376,332 
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NOTE 12 – FINANCIAL ASSETS 
 

 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 2006 2005  2006 2005 
 $ $  $ $ 

Non Current Assets        
Available for sale financial assets - -  2,780 2,780 
      
Unlisted investments at cost      
-   Shares in controlled entities  - -  2,780 2,780 
 
Available for sale financial assets comprise investments in the ordinary issued capital of a controlled entity. 
There are no fixed returns or fixed maturity dates attached to this investment.  
 
 
NOTE 13 – TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
 

 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 2006 2005  2006 2005 
 $ $  $ $ 
      

Trade creditors and accruals 1,757,537 432,564  1,708,561 345,880 
 
 
NOTE 14 – SHORT TERM PROVISIONS 
 

 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 2006 2005  2006 2005 
 $ $  $ $ 
      

Employee entitlements – annual leave  39,353 5,480  39,353 5,480 
Restoration 125,000 125,000  - - 
 164,353 130,480  39,353 5,480 
 
The provision for restoration of $125,000 was recognised in the 2005 financial year and relates to ATP 608P 
Rookwood Block area of interest. The provision has been classified as current as no production license for 
ATP 608P Rookwood Block area of interest has been received. No movement occurred in 2006.  
 
 
NOTE 15 – SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 
 

 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 2006 2005  2006 2005 
 $ $  $ $ 
      

Secured loan facility 5,000,000 -  5,000,000 - 
 

(a) Secured Loan Facility 
Oilex has a $5 million mezzanine financing facility with LinQ Capital Limited to assist in funding 
the development of its Indian production interests, including the drilling of the Cambay field (with 
Oilex as Operator). This facility is secured by way of a fixed and floating charge over the 
Company and its main operating subsidiaries.  
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NOTE 15 – SHORT TERM BORROWINGS (continued) 

Key financial terms and conditions of the LinQ facility include interest at 10% per annum with a 12 month 
term from the first drawdown and the issue of 5 million unlisted options with an exercise price of $0.50 per 
option, expiring in February 2010. The facility was fully drawdown at 30 June 2006. 

 
 
NOTE 16 – CAPITAL AND RESERVES 
 

(a) Issued Capital 
A reconciliation of the movement in capital and reserves for the Company and the consolidated 
entity can be found in the Statement of Changes in Equity. 
 

 THE COMPANY 
 No. of Ordinary Shares  $ 

 2006 2005  2006 2005 
      
On issue at 1 July – fully paid  49,006,285 33,957,007 17,039,127 5,295,262
Issued for cash (i) 26,100,000 14,457,832 20,560,000 12,000,000
Equity-settled transactions  1,008,034 591,446 302,410 513,898
On issue at 30 June – fully paid 76,114,319 49,006,285  
Capital raising costs  (1,337,546) (770,033)
Issued Capital  36,563,991 17,039,127

 
 (i)  The 2006 movement in capital issued for cash relates to adjusting events in accordance with 

Accounting Standard AASB110: Events after the Balance Sheet Date. These transactions 
have been accounted for as adjusting events as this provides evidence of a condition that 
existed at the reporting date; see note 28 (a) and (b).  

 
The Company has also issued share options to employees (see note 17) and financiers. 
 
Effective 1 July 1998, the Company Law Review Act abolished the concept of par value shares 
and the concept of authorised capital. Accordingly, the Company does not have authorised 
capital or par value in respect of its issued shares. 
 
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and 
are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. 
 

(b) Option Reserve 
The option reserve represents the value of shares held by an employee equity compensation plan 
or provided as part of consideration for services by financiers that Oilex is required to include in 
the consolidated financial statements. This reserve will be reversed against share capital when 
the underlying shares vest in the employee or supplier. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or 
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of Oilex’s own equity instruments. 
 
 

NOTE 17 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
  CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 

 2006 2005  2006 2005 
      

Number of employees at year end 11 5  11 5 

 
 
 
 
 

(a) Share Based Payments 
The terms and conditions of options granted by the Company to employees are as follows, 
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of shares: 
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NOTE 17 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued) 
 

a)  Share Based Payments (continued) 
 

Grant Date/Employee Entitled Number of 
Instruments Vesting Conditions Contractual Life of 

Options 
    
Options granted to key management at 4 
March 2003  
Options granted to key management at 
16 November 2004 

1,000,000 
 

200,000 

Vest immediately  
 

Vest immediately 

5 years 
 

3 years 

Options granted to key management at 3 
December 2004 

800,000 Vest immediately 5 years 

Options granted to key management at 
14 December 2005 

5,500,000 Yearly over three years  
of service 

3 years 

Options granted to key management at 
14 December 2005 

4,250,000 
 

Yearly over three years  
of service 

4 years 

Total Share Options 11,750,000   
 
The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows: 
 

 Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

Number of 
Options 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

Number of 
Options 

 2006 2006 2005 2005 
     

Outstanding at the beginning of the period $0.72 2,000,000 - - 
Forfeited during the period - - - - 
Exercised during the period - - - - 
Granted during the period $0.61 9,750,000 $0.72 2,000,000 
Outstanding at the end of the period $0.63 11,750,000 $0.72 2,000,000 
     
Exercisable at the end of the period $0.61 3,000,000 $0.72 2,000,000 
 
The options outstanding at 30 June 2006 have an exercise price in the range of $0.20 to $1.50 and a 
contractual life of 0 to 5 years.  During the financial year, no share options were exercised (2005: nil). 
 
The following factors and assumptions were used in determining the fair value of options on grant date that 
were expensed in the current financial year: 
 

Grant Date Expiry Date 
Fair 

Value Per 
Option 

Exercise 
Price 

Price of 
Shares 

on Grant 
Date 

Expected 
Volatility 

Risk Free 
Interest 

Rate 
Dividend 

Yield 

        
14 December 2005 14 December 2008 $0.15 $0.40 $0.31 75.9% 5.5% - 
14 December 2005 14 December 2008 $0.13 $0.50 $0.31 75.9% 5.5% - 
14 December 2005 14 December 2009 $0.09 $0.80 $0.31 75.9% 5.5% - 
 

(b) Employee Expenses 
 

 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 2006 2005  2006 2005 
 $ $  $ $ 
      

Share options granted in 2006 – equity settled 538,018 -  538,018 - 
Total expense recognised as employee costs 538,018 -  538,018 - 
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NOTE 18 – RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS ACTIVITIES 
 

(a) Reconciliation of Cash Flow with Operations after Loss for Income Tax  
 

 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 2006 2005  2006 2005 
 $ $  $ $ 
      

Net loss for the period (10,680,105) (5,234,864)  (10,826,847) (5,621,902) 
      
Adjustments for:      
Depreciation 100,914 39,362  69,419 27,924 
Share issue in lieu of payment - 300,000  - 300,000 
Exploration expenditure written off 6,178,892 4,161,506  4,741,463 920,654 
Loss on sale of fixed assets 5,723 -  5,723 - 
Equity-settled share based payment expenses 2,389,178 -  2,389,178 - 
Borrowing costs 308,573 -  308,573 - 
Impairment of loans to controlled entities - -  1,326,002 3,705,632 
      
Operating Profit Before Changes in Working 
Capital and Provisions (1,696,825) (733,996)  (1,986,489) (667,692) 
      
Increase in trade creditors and accruals 284,793 36,873  288,961 25,120 
Decrease/(increase) in receivables (100,281) 58,627  (86,701) 83,483 
Increase in provisions 33,873 125,538  33,873 538 
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 239,913 (519,510)  241,080 (494,262) 
      
Net Cash from Operating Activities (1,238,527) (1,032,468)  (1,509,276) (1,052,813) 
      

(b) Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities  
During the year Oilex acquired 98.04% of the issued capital of the unlisted company 
Independence Oil and Gas Limited by the issue of 980,534 Oilex shares valued at $0.30 each 
plus one free Oilex option exercisable at $0.50 per share and expiring on 7 December 2008, and 
an additional 1.375% in onshore permit ATP608P was purchased for consideration of the issue of 
27,500 shares valued at $0.30 each. The issue of shares and options has not been included in 
the Statement of Cash Flows.  

 
 
NOTE 19 – CONSOLIDATED ENTITIES 
 

 Country  Ownership Interest 
 of 2006 2005 
 Incorporation % % 
    

Parent Entity    
Oilex Ltd Australia   
    
Subsidiaries    
Independence Oil & Gas Limited Australia 98.04% - 
Seqoil Pty Ltd Australia 100.00% 100.00% 
Admiral Oil NL Australia 100.00% 100.00% 
Oilex NL Holdings (India) Limited Cyprus 100.00% 100.00% 
Oilex India Pvt Ltd India 90.00% - 
 
Although Oilex owns less than 100% of the voting power of Independence Oil and Gas Limited and Oilex 
India Pvt Ltd, the value attributable to outside equity interests is not material and therefore is not disclosed 
separately in the accounts.  
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NOTE 20 – ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 
 

a) In December 2005 the Company acquired 98.04% of the issued capital of the unlisted company 
Independence Oil & Gas Limited (“IOGL”).  The consideration for the acquisition was 980,534 
Oilex shares at an issue price of $0.30 each, plus one free Oilex option exercisable at $0.50 per 
share and expiring on 7 December 2008.  The exercise of the options is conditional upon 
acquisition by IOGL of an onshore petroleum permit in Timor-Leste (formerly East Timor) within 
the option period.  All of these securities are subject to a 12 month voluntary escrow. 

 
Purchase consideration $404,889 
Equity issued as consideration $404,889 
Fair value of assets acquired - 
Goodwill $404,889 

 
The purchase consideration was written off in the current financial year. 

 
b) On 6 September 2005 Oilex NL Holdings (India) Limited subscribed INR90,000 (A$2,857) for 

9,000 shares at INR10 (A$0.32) each in Oilex India Pvt Ltd on incorporation.  
 
 
NOTE 21 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
Exposure to credit, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal course of Oilex’s business. 
 

(a) Credit Risk 
At the balance sheet date there was no significant concentrations of credit risk. Oilex does not 
have any material credit risk exposure to any singular debtor or group of debtors under financial 
instruments entered into by Oilex.  The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the 
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet. 

 
 (b) Interest Rate Risk 

Effective Interest Rates and Repricing Analysis 
In respect of income-earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities, the following 
table indicates their effective interest rates at the balance sheet date and the periods in which 
they reprice. 
 

 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 

EFFECTIVE 
INTEREST 

RATE 

FLOATING INTEREST 
RATE 

FIXED INTEREST RATE 
MATURING WITHIN 

YEAR 

NON-INTEREST 
BEARING 

TOTAL 
 

 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 
 % % $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Financial Assets            
Cash and cash 
equivalents 5.36 5.52 21,197,390 384,779 - 7,752,344 64,821 504 21,262,211 8,137,627 

Trade and other 
receivables   - - - - 3,868,954 29,327 3,868,954 29,327 

Total Financial Assets  21,197,390 384,779 - 7,752,344 3,933,775 29,831 25,131,165 8,166,954 
           
Financial Liabilities          
Trade and other 
payables   - - - - 1,757,537 432,564 1,757,537 432,564 

Secured loan 
facility 10 - - - 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 - 

Total Financial Liabilities   5,000,000  1,757,537 432,564 6,757,537 432,564 
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NOTE 21 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)  
 

(c) Foreign Currency Risk 
Oilex is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales and purchases that are denominated in a 
currency other than the Australian dollar. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily United 
States dollars. Oilex has not entered into any forward foreign exchange contracts as at 30 June 
2006 and is currently fully exposed to foreign exchange risk. 
 

(d) Net Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities  
The net fair values of assets and liabilities of Oilex approximate their carrying amounts. The net 
fair value of other monetary financial assets and liabilities are based on market prices. Oilex has 
no off-balance sheet financial instruments. 
 

(e) Liquidity Risk  
The Company manages liquidity by monitoring present cash flows and ensuring that adequate 
cash reserves, financing facilities and equity raisings are undertaken to ensure that Oilex can 
meet its obligations.  
 
 

NOTE 22 – AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION 
 

  CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
  2006 2005  2006 2005 
  $ $  $ $ 
       

Remuneration of the auditor for:       
Auditing or reviewing the financial report  29,225 17,500  29,225 17,500 
Other services  550 16,825  550 12,925 
  29,775 34,325  29,775 30,425 
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NOTE 23 – INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE OPERATIONS 
 
(a) Oilex has an interest in the following joint venture operations whose principal activities are oil and gas 

exploration. 

Permit Number Country or Block Name  
Percentage 

Interest Held % 
2006 

Percentage 
Interest Held % 

2005 
 

OFFSHORE PERMITS: 
EPP27  Australia (Otway Basin) 20.00 20.00 
JPDA 06-103**** Timor-Leste (JPDA)  25.00 n/a 
WA-388-P**** Australia (Carnarvon Basin) 25.00 n/a 
 
ONSHORE PERMITS: 
Cambay Field** India (Cambay Basin)  45.00 - 
Bhandut Field*** India (Cambay Basin)  40.00 - 
Sabarmati Field*** India (Cambay Basin)  40.00 - 
Block 56 Oman (South Oman Salt Basin) 25.00 - 
 
AUSTRALIAN PERMITS SOLD SUBSEQUENT TO FINANCIAL YEAR END: 
ATP 574P*  57.50 57.50 
ATP 593P*  76.00 76.00 
ATP 794P* - Barcoo Block 40.00 40.00 
 - Regleigh Block 16.00 16.00 
 - Springfield Block 16.00 16.00 
 - Barcoo Junction Block  88.00 88.00 
 - Brightspot Block  10.00 10.00 
 - Part 2 Block  40.00 40.00 
ATP 608P* - Rookwood Block  60.435 59.06 
 - Remainder Block  48.125 66.75 
ATP 548P*  11.35 10.00 
ATP 545P*  45.50 45.50 
ATP 805P*  42.50 20.00 
ATP 677P* (Application)  50.00 50.00 
 
APPLICATIONS WITHDRAWN DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 
ATP797P Australia (Eromanga Basin) 55.00 55.00 
ATP798P Australia (Eromanga Basin)  55.00 55.00 
 
 
* Interests in these joint venture operations were sold subsequent to year end. 
** 15% equity pending approval of the Government of India. 
*** Pending approval of the Government of India. 
**** Permit awarded post 30 June 2006.  
 
 
 
(b) Included in the assets and liabilities of Oilex, are the following items which represent Oilex’s interest in 

the assets and liabilities employed in the joint ventures, recorded in accordance with Oilex’s 
accounting policies. 
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NOTE 23 – INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE OPERATIONS (continued) 
 

  CONSOLIDATED  PARENT 
  2006 2005  2006 2005 
  $ $  $ $ 
       

Current Assets       
Cash and cash equivalents  116,265 22,972  4,292 5,806 
Trade and other receivables  38,681 27,085  - - 
Inventories  26,415 25,248  - - 
Total current assets  181,361 75,305  4,292 5,806 
       
Non-current Assets       
Property, plant and equipment – at cost  140,454 137,258  - - 
Less: accumulated depreciation  (39,795) (11,438)  - - 
  100,659 125,820  - - 
Trade and other receivables  6,757 6,757  6,756 6,756 
Total non-current assets  107,416 132,577  6,756 6,756 
Total Assets  288,777 207,882  11,048 12,562 
       
Current Liabilities       
Trade and other payables  25,473 1,033  - - 
Total current liabilities  25,473 1,033  - - 
Total Liabilities  25,473 1,033  - - 
       
Net Assets  263,304 206,849  11,048 12,562 
 
 
NOTE 24 – OPERATING LEASES 
 

(a) Leases as Lessee 
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows: 

 
 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 2006 2005  2006 2005 
 $ $  $ $ 
      

Less than one year 292,720 48,060  292,720 48,060 
Between one and five years 301,791 20,025  301,791 20,025 
 594,511 68,085  594,511 68,085 
      
 

Oilex leases its head office premises at Level 3, 50 Kings Park Road, West Perth under an 
operating lease. The lease expires on 31 December 2008 with an option to renew the lease for a 
further term of six years after that date. Lease payments are increased every 18 months to reflect 
market rentals. The lease does not include contingent rentals. 
 
Oilex leases its Indian premises under an operating lease.  The lease expires on 31 December 
2008 with an option to renew the lease for a further term of two years after that date.  Lease 
payments are fixed with a 15% increase applicable if Oilex exercises its option of a further term of 
two years. The lease does not include contingent rentals. 
 
During the financial year ended 30 June 2006, $190,093 was recognised as an expense in the 
income statement in respect of operating leases (2005: $47,491). 
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NOTE 25 – CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS  
 

(a) Exploration Expenditure Commitments 
In order to maintain current rights of tenure to exploration permits, Oilex is required to 
perform minimum exploration work to meet the minimum expenditure requirements specified 
by various state and national governments. These obligations are subject to renegotiation 
when application for an exploration permit is made and at other times. These obligations are 
not provided for in the financial report and are estimated to be payable as follows: 
 

 

 
 

(c) Contingent Liability  
Under a Sale and Purchase Agreement dated January 2006, the Company has agreed to 
acquire an additional 15% interest in the Cambay Field and 40% each in Bhandut and 
Sabarmati Fields, onshore Gujarat, India. The Company will become the Operator under the 
existing Production Sharing Contract and Joint Operating Agreement and in consideration of 
the assignment of the vendor’s interests and adjustment for their share of the original farmin, 
the Company will pay a total of US$5,486,000 of which the balance of US$3,740,900 will be 
due when approval of the Government of India is received.  
 

 
 

 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY  
 2006 2005  2006 2005 
 $ $  $ $ 

  
Within one year 9,316,000 275,248 9,316,000 275,248
One year or later and no later than five years 8,600,000 59,600 8,600,000 59,600
 17,916,000 334,848 17,916,000 334,848

Financial commitments for subsequent periods are contingent upon future exploration results 
and can not be estimated. These obligations are subject to renegotiation upon expiry of the 
exploration leases. 

  
(b) Employee Compensation Commitments 

Key Management Personnel 
Commitments under non-cancellable employment contracts not provided for in the financial 
statements and payable: 
Within one year 814,881 - 422,038 -

  
Other Employees 
Commitments under non-cancellable employment contracts not provided for in the financial 
statements and payable: 
Within one year 181,103 - 181,103 -
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NOTE 26 – KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES 
 
The following were key management personnel of Oilex at any time during the reporting period and unless 
otherwise indicated were key management personnel for the entire period: 
 
Non-Executive Directors Position 
Mr Max Cozijn  Chairperson and Company Secretary 
Dr Geoffrey Johnson  Non-Executive Director 
  
Executive Directors Position 
Dr Bruce McCarthy Managing Director 
Mr Ray Barnes Technical Director (appointed in September 2005) 
Mr Simon Robertson Chief Financial Officer (resigned in September 2005) 
  
Executives Position 
Mr Graham McCauley Chief Financial Officer (appointed in October 2005) 
Mr Rich Paces Chief Operating Officer and Country Manager - India (appointed in May 2006) 
Mr Anthony Beckett General Manager Operations (appointed in January 2006) 
 

(a) Key Management Personnel Compensation 
The key management personnel compensation included in administration expenses (see note 4) 
are as follows: 

 
 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 2006 

$ 
2005 

$ 
 2006 

$ 
2005 

$ 
   
Short-term employee benefits 827,606 188,014 827,606 188,014
Other long term benefits - - - -
Post-employment benefits 192,744 93,977 192,744 93,977
Termination benefits - - - -
Equity compensation benefits 538,018 - 538,018 -
 1,558,368 281,991 1,558,368 281,991
  
 

The Company has taken advantage of the relief provided by ASIC Class Order 06/05 and has 
transferred the detailed remuneration disclosures to the Directors’ Report.  The relevant 
information can be found in the Remuneration Report. 
 

(b) Individual Directors and Executives Compensation Disclosures 
Information regarding individual Directors and executives compensation is provided in the 
Remuneration Report section of the Directors’ Report. 
 
Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no Director has entered into a material contract with 
the Company or Oilex since the end of the previous financial year and there were no material 
contracts involving Directors’ interest existing at year-end. 
 

(c) Key Management Personnel Transactions with the Company or its Controlled Entities 
Key management persons, or their related parties, can hold positions in other entities that result 
in them having control or significant influence over the financial or operating policies of those 
entities. 
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NOTE 26 – KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES (continued) 
 

(c) Key Management Personnel Transactions with the Company or its Controlled Entities 
(continued) 

 
One of these entities transacted with the Company or its subsidiaries in the reporting period. The 
terms and conditions of the transactions with management persons and their related parties were 
no more favourable than those available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available, 
on similar transactions to non-director related entities on an arm’s length basis. 
 
The aggregate amounts recognised during the year relating to key management personnel and 
their related parties were as follows: 
 

 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 Note 2006 

$ 
2005 

$ 
 2006 

$ 
2005 

$ 
Key management personnel Transaction       
Mr Ray Barnes Technical, management and 

administrative services 
I. 208,500 -  208,500 - 

 
I. Oilex used the services of Ad Valorem Resource Consultants Pty Ltd of which Mr Barnes is a 

Director.  Rates charges were at normal professional rates and have been included in the 
remuneration of key management personnel disclosure. 

 
(d) Options over Equity Instruments Granted as Compensation 

The movement during the reporting period in the number of options over ordinary shares in the 
Company held, directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each key management person, including their 
related parties, is as follows: 

 
 

Held at 1 
July 2005 

Granted as 
compensation Exercised 

Other 
changes* 

Held at 30 
June 2006 

Vested 
during the 

year 

Vested and 
exercisable 
at 30 June 

2006 
2006        
Directors        
M.D.J. Cozijn 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 
G.I. Johnson  500,000 - - - 500,000 - 500,000 
B.H. McCarthy  - 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 
R.G. Barnes - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 - - 
S.L. Robertson - - - - - - - 
        
Other key management personnel      
G.J. McCauley - 750,000 - - 750,000 - - 
R.S. Paces - - - - - - - 
A. Beckett - - - - - - - 
        
 

Held at 1 
July 2004 

Granted as 
compensation Exercised 

Other 
changes* 

Held at 30 
June 2005 

Vested 
during the 

year 

Vested and 
exercisable 
at 30 June 

2005 
2005        
Directors        
M.D.J. Cozijn - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 
G.I. Johnson  - 500,000 - - 500,000 500,000 500,000 
B.H. McCarthy  - - - - - - - 
S.L. Robertson - - - - - - - 
 
* Other changes represent options that expired or were forfeited during the year. 
 

All other key management personnel were not employed by Oilex in the 2005 financial year. 
No options held by key management personnel are vested but not exercisable. 
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NOTE 26 – KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES (continued) 
 

(e) Movements in Shares 
The movement during the reporting period in the number of ordinary shares in the Company held, 
directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each key management personnel, including their related 
parties, is as follows: 

 
 

Held at 1 July 
2005 Purchases 

Received on 
exercise of 

options Sales 
Held at 30 
June 2006 

2006      
Directors      

M.D.J. Cozijn 500,000 - - - 500,000 
G.I. Johnson  - - - - - 
B.H. McCarthy  600,000 395,000 - (145,000) 850,000 
R.G. Barnes - 623,871 - - 623,871 
S.L. Robertson 30,000 5,000 - - 35,000 
 
      

 
Held at 1 July 

2005 Purchases 

Received on 
exercise of 

options Sales 
Held at 30 
June 2006 

      
Other key management personnel    
G.J. McCauley - - - - - 
R.S. Paces - 365,000 - - 365,000 
A. Beckett - - - - - 
      
 

Held at 1 July 
2004 Purchases 

Received on 
exercise of 

options Sales 
Held at 30 
June 2005 

2005      
Directors      
M.D.J. Cozijn 400,000 100,000 - - 500,000 
G.I. Johnson  - - - - - 
B.H. McCarthy  - 600,000 - - 600,000 
S.L. Robertson - 30,000 - - 30,000 
 
All other key management personnel were not employed by Oilex in the 2005 financial year. 
 
No shares were granted to key management personnel during the reporting period as compensation. 
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NOTE 27 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
 

(a) Identity of Related Parties 
Oilex has a related party relationship with its subsidiaries (see note 19), joint ventures (see note 
23) and with its key management personnel (see note 26). 
 

 
(b) Other Related Party Transactions 

(i) Subsidiaries 
Loans are made by the Company to wholly owned subsidiaries for capital, exploration and 
production expenditure. Loans outstanding between the Company and its controlled entities 
have no fixed date of repayment and are non-interest bearing. During the financial year ended 
30 June 2006, such loans to subsidiaries totalled $1,326,002 (2005: $3,705,632). These loans 
have been recognised as non-current receivables and have been fully provided for at year 
end. 

 
(ii) Director Related Parties  

 

 CONSOLIDATED  THE COMPANY 
 2006 

$ 
2005 

$ 
 2006 

$ 
2005 

$ 
    
Administration service fee paid to Metex 
Resources Ltd (MDJ Cozijn is a Director of 
Metex Resources Ltd) 29,425 32,400

  
 

29,425 32,400
   

 
NOTE 28 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

(a) Share Placement  
On 28 July 2006 following shareholders’ approval a total of 23,600,000 fully paid ordinary shares 
were allotted at $0.85 per share raising gross proceeds of $20,060,000. In accordance with 
Accounting Standard AASB110: Events after the Balance Sheet Date, this transaction has been 
accounted for as an adjusting event as it provides evidence of a condition that existed at the 
reporting date. 
 

(b) Issue of Shares  
On 1 August 2006 following shareholders’ approval a total of 2,500,000 fully paid ordinary shares 
were allotted to India Hydrocarbons Limited at $0.20 per share raising $500,000. In accordance 
with Accounting Standard AASB110: Events after the Balance Sheet Date, this transaction has 
been accounted for as an adjusting event as it provides evidence of a condition that existed at the 
reporting date. 
 

(c) JPDA Block 06-103 
In August 2006 a consortium led by Oilex was awarded block 06-103 in the Joint Petroleum 
Development Area (“JPDA”) between Timor-Leste and Australia.  Block 06-103 was rated by the 
consortium to be the most prospective of the blocks on offer in the bid round that closed in May 
2006.  It is located immediately to the east of the Laminaria, Corallina, Kakatua, Kuda Tasi and 
Elang discoveries/oil and gas fields and to the north of the Bayu-Undan condensate field.  Oilex 
retains a 25% interest and operatorship of the block.  

 
(d) North West Shelf Permit WA-388-P 

In August 2006 a consortium led by Oilex was awarded permit WA-388-P located in the offshore 
Carnarvon Basin (North West Shelf) of Western Australia.  WA-388-P is located to the north of 
the Goodwyn/North Rankin gas fields trend and to the northeast of the Jansz-lo gas discoveries 
in the Exmouth sub-basin.  Oilex retains a 25% interest and operatorship of the permit.  
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NOTE 28 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued) 
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(e) Sale of Queensland Assets 
In August 2006 Oilex signed a Share Sale and Purchase Agreement for the sale to Bow Energy 
Ltd (“Bow”) of its onshore Queensland oil and gas permit interests in the Bowen-Surat and
Cooper-Eromanga Basins.  As consideration for the sale of the assets, Oilex will be issued 15
million fully paid ordinary shares and 15 million options to purchase Bow shares at $0.50 per 
share on or before 5 years from the issue date. The sale is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders of Bow and completion of the due diligence process. The effective date of sale is 
24 August 2006 with settlement to be effected by 31 October 2006.  The shares will be subject to
voluntary escrow for a period of two years from the date of issue. 
 

(f) Conversion to Public Company Limited By Shares  
With effect from 8 September 2006 (following shareholders’ approval on 28 July 2006) the 
Company changed its type from a no liability company to a limited company.  
 

(g) Change of Company Name  
Following shareholders’ approval on 28 July 2006 the Company’s name was changed from 
Oilex NL to Oilex Ltd with effect from 8 September 2006. 
 

(h) Exercise of Options  
On 20 July 2006 LinQ Capital Limited exercised 500,000 unlisted options at $0.50 per share
raising $250,000.  

The financial effect of the above events has not been brought to account at balance date except for 
events (a) and (b) above.  
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NOTE 29 – EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO AIFRS’S
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on of Equity  

 CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY 

 
Previous 

GAAP 

Effect of 
transition 
to AIFRS 
1/7/2004 AIFRS 

Previous 
GAAP 

Effect of 
transition 
to AIFRS 
30/6/2005 AIFRS 

Previous 
GAAP 

Effect of 
transition 
to AIFRS 
1/7/2004 AIFRS 

Previous 
GAAP 

Effect of 
transition 
to AIFRS 
30/6/2005 AIFRS 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
SETS             

quivalents 1,771,661 - 1,771,661 8,137,627 - 8,137,627 1,771,658 - 1,771,658 8,117,678 - 8,117,678 
nd other 

37,954 - 37,954 29,327 - 29,327 34,733 - 34,733 1,250 - 1,250 
- - - 519,510 - 519,510 - - - 494,262 - 494,262 

89,778 - 89,778 - - - 50,000 - 50,000 - - - 
AL CURRENT 

SETS 1,899,393 - 1,899,393 8,686,464 - 8,686,464 1,856,391 - 1,856,391 8,613,190 - 8,613,190 

33,772 - 33,772 64,535 - 64,535 20,789 - 20,789 6,756 - 6,756 
in subsidiaries - - - - - - 400,615 - 400,615 2,780 - 2,780 

y, plant and 
112,952 - 112,952 228,852 - 228,852 112,952 - 112,952 103,032 - 103,032 

AL NON-CURRENT 
SETS 146,724 

 
- 146,724 293,387 - 293,387 534,356 - 534,356 112,568 - 112,568 

AL ASSETS 2,046,117 - 2,046,117 8,979,851 - 8,979,851 2,390,747 - 2,390,747 8,725,758 - 8,725,758 
            

ABILITIES             
and other payables 132,944 - 132,944 432,564 - 432,564 132,944 - 132,944 345,880 - 345,880 

4,942 - 4,942 130,480 - 130,480 4,943 - 4,943 5,480 - 5,480 
425 - 425 - - - 425 - 425 - - - 

AL CURRENT 
ABILITIES 138,311 - 138,311 563,044 - 563,044 138,312 - 138,312 351,360 - 351,360 

OTAL LIABILITIES 138,311 - 138,311 563,044 - 563,044 138,312 - 138,312 351,360 - 351,360 
            

SSETS 1,907,806 - 1,907,806 8,416,807 - 8,416,807 2,252,435 - 2,252,435 8,374,398 - 8,374,398 

UITY             
capital 5,295,262 - 5,295,262 17,039,127 - 17,039,127 5,295,262 - 5,295,262 17,039,127 - 17,039,127 

losses (3,387,456) - (3,387,456) (8,622,320) - (8,622,320) (3,042,827) - (3,042,827) (8,664,729) - (8,664,729) 
            

TAL EQUITY 1,907,806 - 1,907,806 8,416,807 - 8,416,807 2,252,435 - 2,252,435 8,374,398 - 8,374,398 
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NOTE 29 – EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO AIFRS’S (continued) 
 
As stated in significant accounting policies note 2(a), these are Oilex’s first consolidated financial statements 
prepared in accordance with AIFRS. 
 
The policies set out in the significant accounting policies section of this report have been applied in preparing 
the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2006, the comparative information presented in 
these financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2005 and in the preparation of an opening 
AIFRS balance sheet at 1 July 2004 (Oilex date of transition). 
 
Reconciliation of Profit for 2005 
 

 CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY 

 
Previous 

GAAP 

Effect of 
Transition 
to AIFRS AIFRS 

Previous 
GAAP 

Effect of 
Transition 
to AIFRS AIFRS 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ 
 
Revenue  517,198 - 517,198 452,537 - 452,537 
       
Employees benefits expense  (435,395) - (435,395) (435,395) - (435,395) 
Depreciation expense  (39,362) - (39,362) (27,924) - (27,924) 
Exploration expenditure  (4,161,506) - (4,161,506) (920,654) - (920,654) 
Provision for diminution of 
loans to controlled entities - - - (3,705,632) - (3,705,632) 
Administration expenses  (530,477) - (530,477) (530,484) - (530,484) 
Other expenses (585,322) - (585,322) (454,350) - (454,350) 
Financial expenses - - - - - - 
       
LOSS BEFORE INCOME 
TAX (5,234,864) - (5,234,864) (5,621,902) - (5,621,902) 
Income tax expense - - - - - - 
NET LOSS (5,234,864) - (5,234,864) (5,621,902) - (5,621,902) 
       
       
       
       
       
       
 

 64



OILEX LTD 
ABN 50 078 652 632 

 
DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION 

 

 65

 
1 In the opinion of the Directors of Oilex Ltd (the “Company”): 
 

a) the financial statements and notes as set out on pages 28 to 64, are in accordance with the 
Corporations Act 2001, including: 

 
(i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the consolidated 

entity as at 30 June 2006 and of their performance, as represented by the results of their 
operations and their cash flows, for the financial year ended on that date; and 

 
(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001;  
 

b) the remuneration disclosures that are contained in the Remuneration Report in the Directors’ 
Report comply with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures and 
ASIC Class Order 06/105 Calculation of director and executive remuneration/ Corporations Act 
2001 

 
c) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and 

when they become due and payable. 
 
2 The Directors have been given the declarations by the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer 

for the financial year ended 30 June 2006 pursuant to Section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001. 
 
 
 
 
Dated at West Perth this 19th day of September 2006. 
 
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors. 
 

 
 

………………………………………………….. ………………………………………………….. 
Mr M.D.J. Cozijn Dr B.H. McCarthy  
Chairman Managing Director 
 

West Perth, Western Australia  West Perth, Western Australia 
19 September 2006 19 September 2006 
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

 
1. Shareholding       

 

 The shareholder information set out below was applicable as at 8 September 2006. 
 

 (a) Distribution of Share and Option Holdings as at 8 September 2006.  
 

Size of Holding and 
Option Holdings 

 Number of 
Shareholders 

 Number of Unlisted 
Option holders 

1 - 1,000  160  1 
1,001 - 5,000  522  5 
5,001 - 10,000  352  11 
10,001 - 100,000  563  18 
100,001 and over  101  12 
 

Total Shareholders and Option Holders 
 

1,698  47 
 

(b) Of the above total, 23 Ordinary Shareholders hold less than a marketable parcel. 
(c) There are no substantial shareholders holding 5% or more of the Company’s shares.  
(d) Voting Rights 
 
The voting rights attached to the ordinary shares are governed by the Constitution.  
 
On a show of hands every person present who is a Member or representative of a Member shall have 
one vote and on a poll, every Member present in person or by proxy or by attorney or duly authorised 
representative shall have one vote for each share held. None of the options have any voting rights. 

 
2. The name of the Company Secretary is Mr M.D.J. Cozijn. 
 
3. The address of the principal registered office is Level 3, 50 Kings Park Road, West Perth WA 6005, 

Australia, Telephone +61 8 9226 5577. 
 
4. The register of securities listed on the Australian Stock Exchange is held by Security Transfer 

Registrars Pty Ltd, 770 Canning Highway, Applecross WA 6153, Australia, Telephone +61 8 9315 
2333. 

 
 The register of securities listed on the Alternative Investment Market is held by Computershare 

Investor Services PLC, 2nd The Pavilions, Bridgewater Road, Bristol BS13 8AE, United Kingdom, 
Telephone +44 870 703 0300.  

 
5. Stock Exchange Listing  
         Quotation has been granted for all the ordinary shares of the company on all Member Exchanges 

of the Australian Stock Exchange Ltd and the Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock 
Exchange and trades under the symbol OEX. 

 
6. Detailed schedules of exploration and production permits held are included in the Operations Review. 
 
7. Directors’ interest in share capital is disclosed in the Directors’ Report. 
 
8. Unquoted Securities – Restricted Securities 

There are presently 76,614,319 ordinary shares on issue which are listed on the Australian Stock 
Exchange with 980,534 shares restricted until 6 December 2006 (voluntary escrow) and 2,500,000 
shares are restricted until 1 August 2007 (voluntary escrow).  
 
There are a total of 24,755,534 unlisted options with 980,534 options restricted until 7 December 2006 
(voluntary escrow). 
 
Unquoted Securities – Options  

          Dr B.H. McCarthy (Managing Director) holds a total of six million options, see note 17, which represent  
          24.24% of all outstanding options. Total unlisted options on issue are 24,755,534. 

 
9. There is currently no on-market buy-back in place.  
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TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS 

AS AT 8 SEPTEMBER 2006 
 
 

 SHAREHOLDERS 
(Fully Paid Ordinary) 

  NUMBER OF 
SHARES 

 % 

      
  1. ANZ NOMINEES LIMITD  5,680,599  7.41 
  2. JP MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA   3,530,000  4.61 
  3. CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED  3,276,362  4.28 
  4. NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED   3,273,908  4.27 
  5. INDIA HYDROCARBONS LTD  3,000,000  3.92 
  6. ORION EQUITIES LIMITED  2,984,668  3.90 
  7. RBC DEXIA INVESTOR SERVICES  2,888,704  3.77 
  8. BARCLAYSHARE NOMINEES LTD  1,301,487 (*) 1.70 
  9. ALCHEMY SECURITIES PTY LTD  1,000,000  1.31 
10. MIRAMAR SUPANNUATION FUND PTY LTD  1,000,000  1.31 
11. J NICOLIS PTY LIMITED  905,503  1.18 
12. UOB KAY HIAN PTE LTD  874,000  1.14 
13. BRUCE HENRY MCCARTHY   800,000  1.04 
14. DAVID EDWARDS  720,000  0.94 
15. HSBC CUSTODIAN NOMINEES   719,517  0.94 
16. LR NOMINEES LTD  709,995 (*) 0.93 
17. FOREST NOMINEES LTD  677,900 (*) 0.88 
18. TD WATERHOUSE NOMINEES (EUROPE) LTD    669,676 (*) 0.87 
19. ZELMAN PTY LTD   650,000  0.85 
20. AD VALOREM RESOURCE CONSULTANTS PTY LTD    600,000  0.78 
      
 TOP 20 SHAREHOLDERS  35,262,319  46.03%
 TOTAL ISSUED SHARES as at 8 September 2006   76,614,319  100.00%
 
Note: (*) Included within the total issued capital are 7,653,251 shares held on the AIM register. Included within the top 20 

shareholders are certain AIM registered holders as marked.  
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[INSERT NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING FOR 2006 
 

AND 
 

PROXY FORM] 
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